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March 21 2012

To our stockholders

When we look back on fiscal 2011 it will represent turning point for GameTech International as we

faced and continue to face some daunting realities amid the challenges and uncertainties present in the

global economy Despite these challenges we were able to fund operations and product development while

continuing to pay down our debt and strengthen our company

The overarching issues the GameTech Board of Directors and management team faced during fiscal 2011

continued to be how with decreasing base revenue to reduce our debt and re-align our capital and expense

allocation Our response to these challenges was to redefine our businesses market segments and

customer base We began with the premise that what had made GameTech dominant force in the

electronic bingo business and competitive player in the VLT business was our ability to innovate and

deliver unique gaming solutions for operators and unique gaming experience for players

In the bingo space we started by refining and reintroducing our GameTech Edge Bingo System rolling out

our new Explorer line of hand-held units and adapting our large inventory of Traveler and Tracker hand-

held units to operate on the GameTech Edge Bingo System Going forward this provides us with

platform to deliver new and innovative game content and to remotely perform certain service and upgrade

activities thus decreasing support costs reducing response times and increasing customer satisfaction

We also initiated major effort to re-segment our core markets and better match our bingo product and

system offerings to address operator and end-user requirements in each market segment significant

portion of this effort included the development and implementation of new product plan focused on the

introduction of new bingo products and systems including new stand alone bingo verification system

known as the Bingo BossTM which was introduced in December 2011 the development of our next

generation bingo management system GameTech PhoenixTM which we hope to complete in late 2012

and the development of new low production cost portable bingo device that we also plan to release in late

2012

The GameTech PhoenixTM system is being designed to deliver an unparalleled player experience as well as

expanded capabilities needed to satisfy the needs of casinos and larger commercial bingo halls This system

will provide all the functionality required by bingo operators and will allow GameTech to focus on

delivering variety of player enhancements and to offer unique bingo and gaming content The new low

production cost portable bingo device is also being designed from the ground up and is expected to offer

unique form-factor and more engaging user interface

GameTech International Inc

8850 Double Diamond Parkway Reno Nevada 89521 Phone 775 850-6000 Fax 775 850-6090

www.GameTech-Inc.com



In the slot and VLT space we began with standardizing our base platform across the markets that we serve

and then focusing on developing new unique compelling game content while maintaining competitive

cost model We also focused efforts on delivering our unique game content to markets that we do not

currently serve through third party intellectual property licensing arrangements These efforts resulted in

the execution of an intellectual property license agreement granting license to use five of our game titles

in Illinois resulting in $1 million of revenue during the first quarter of fiscal 2012

GameTech International has reached turning point and our new direction and strategy for 2012 is clear

Moving forward we will deliver new bingo system based on the newest software and hardware

technologies to ensure stable dynamic content driven platform that will be feature rich and address

larger breadth of the electronic bingo market We will radically change our vision of how bingo will be

played in the future by introducing new game themes and game play mechanics We can leverage both

sides of our business to take maximum advantage of new technologies which will translate into cost

reductions in hardware and software We understand and will embrace changes in the gaming industry to

move toward more gamer-like interface thus attracting broader demographic Lastly but most

significantly we will affirm our leadership position in providing service to operators distributors and end-

users by re-claiming our customer driven focus

Although fiscal 2011 presented challenging environment for everyone we do see it as an inflection point

It was year that made us come to grips with our past missteps and carefully redefine our direction

mission and goals

With the progress we have made in our operations expense controls redirection of purpose innovation

development and customer focus feel we are well positioned to emerge stronger industry leading

entity

Sincerely

Kevin Painter

President Chief Executive Officer and Chairman

GameTech International Inc
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Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

The statements contained in this report on Form 10-K that are not purely historical are forward-looking statements within the meaning of

applicable securities laws Forward-looking statements include statements regarding our expectations anticipation intentions beliefs

or strategies regarding the future Forward-looking statements also include statements regarding revenue margins expenses and earnings for

fiscal 2012 and thereafter expansion of products or product development expansion into new domestic and international markets potential

acquisitions or strategic alliances and liquidity and anticipated cash needs and availability All forward-looking statements included in this

report are based on information available to us as ofthe filing date ofthis report and we assume no obligation to update any such forward-looking

statements Our actual results could
differ materially from the forward-looking statements



PART

Item Business

General

Our company was incorporated in 1994 to develop and market interactive electronic bingo systems GameTech bingo products cunently consist of

portable fixed-based and server-based player terminals inclusive of bingo operating systems Bingo segment We also design develop and

market gaming software and content for use in connection with video lotteiy teminals VLTs and slot machine equipment including gaming devices

the VLT segment Historically most of our revenues have been generated domestically with the remainder from product placement in Europe

Canada and Asia For information about our segments in addition to that which immediately follows see Business Strategy also in Item and Note 16

to our consolidated financial statements included in Item

We are domestic and international gaming technology company dedicated to the development and manufacturing of gaming entertainment products

and systems We hold significant position in the North American bingo market with our interactive electronic bingo systems portable and fixed-

based gaming units and complete halt management modules our Bingo Segment We also hold significant position in select North American VLT

markets primarily Montana Louisiana and South Dakota where we offer video lotteiy terminals and related gaming equipment and software our VLT

Segment Historically we have generated over 90% of our revenues domestically The Company conducts substantial amount of its business

through distributor relationships many of which act as our collection agent One distributor represented 45.4% of our consolidated accounts

receivable balance before allowances at October 30 2011

Bingo Segment

Our products include portable and server-based bingo systems that can be played anywhere within bingo hall and fixed-based terminals with touch

screen activated monitors that can be used in charitable Native American commercial and militaiy bingo hall operations Our portable and fixed-based

bingo terminals display electronic bingo card images for each bingo game Our electronic bingo tenninals enable players to play substantially more

bingo cards than they can play on paper cards typically leading to greater spend per player and higher profits per bingo session for the bingo

operator We install the electronic bingo systems typically at no cost to the operator and charge either fixed fee per use per terminal fixed weekly

fee per terminal or percentage of the revenue generated by each terminal Our contracts with bingo operators are typically for an initial period of one

to three years some with automatic one-year renewals until affirmatively cancelled

Nonprofit organizations sponsor charitable bingo games for fundraising purposes while Native American enterprises and other government units and

commercial entities operate bingo games for profit As of October 30 2011 we had bingo systems placed in 38 states various Native American

locations the Philippines and Canada Under the Indian Gaming Regulatory Act or IGRA electronic bingo may be played on Native American

lands We estimate that bingo is currently played on Native American lands in 30 states As of October 30 2011 we had terminals in operation in

Native American bingo halls in 15 of those states For fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2010 78.3% and 85.5% respectively of our net revenue came thm our

Bingo segment



In 2008 we released new wireless server-based operating system 3ameTech Elite which enabled us to offer expanded content support and

ffinctionality
to our products The lameTech Elite operating system has become the core operating system for our latest bingo platform lanieTech

Edge Bingo System The GameTech Edge Bingo System was released to the market in thin quarter of 2010 and now operates in eight states and in

Ontario Canada In conjunction with this release we introduced the ExplorerTM our new state-of-the-art wireless bingo device our Virtual Flash Board

application and our Vivid View fixed based terminal which boasts 18.5 inch rugged touch screen designed for high volume bingo

environments Since this initial release we have continued to expand on features and functionality adding new back office modules and game content

to provide our operators with better ways to manage their operations and players with new interactive game play In May of 2011 we introduced

branded session bingo game Slingo Jokers WildTM along with additional back office features including inventoiy management and other modules In

the thin quarter of 2011 we began development of new hand held player unit the Explorer 2TM designed for longer play time and more robust

platform and hardware to support the ilanieTech Edge Bingo SystemTM and new game content This new device was released in the first quarter of

2012 In the last quarterof 2011 we began workon stand-alone verifier Bingo B0s5TM which allows any bingo hall to play ourproprietary games in

paper only format The Bingo Bos will expand our ability to provide new interactive bingo content to halls that do not currently utilize our

electronic bingo systems In addition to bingo systems and player tenninals we develop and market exclusive bingo based speed games namely our

Big Bad BingoTM or B3TM game suite which currently can be played on fixed-based teminals and on the ExplorerTM

VLTSeginent

We also manufacture and sell video lotteiy terminals associated gaming equipment and related software and game content collectively called the

VLT business We entered the VLT business on Mareh 282007 with our acquisition of substantially all of the assets of Summit Aniusement

Distributing Ltd Summit laming for $40.9 million $39.5 million net of $1.4 million settlement in 2010 in cash These machines are typically sold

to route operators bar/tavern gaming operators and distributors

Our VLT business includes VLTs state manitored Class 111 gaming machines traditional slot Class III gaming machines related software and game

content Ourequipnient is operated in casinos bar/taverns truck stops and other locations approved by the various jurisdictions As of October 30

2011 we had VLT tenninals placed and in service in seven states We sell VLTs and related software and equipment primarily in Louisiana Montana

and South Dakota For fiscal 2011 and 201021.7% and 14.5% respectively ofour net revenue came from our VLT segment

Periodic and otherfihings with the SEC

Our website is located at www.gametech-inc.com Through our website we make available free of charge our annual reports on Form 10-K our proxy

statements our quarterly reports on Form lO-Q our current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to

Section 13a or 15d under the Securities Exchange Act These reports are available as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file them

with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission SEC Our financial results are reported using 52153 week fiscal year ending on the

Sunday nearest October 31

Business Strategy

Our goals are to be leading provider of electronic bingo products in the United States on Native American lands and internationally and quality

provider of VLT products in selected markets Key elements of this strategy include the following

Expand Product Offerings and Emphasize Unique Gaming Content

We plan to expand the number of Bingo products we offer and the price range of solutions available to our customers We also plan to initiate an

extensive Bingo equipment refiithishment programover the next two years for equipment currently placed with customers

Our product development vision focuses on player-centricity and the core belief that the powerof game design and entertainment focused on the

player will ultimately maximize the potential for operator profitability We focus on delivering innovative entertainment through all our gaming

products We believe our commitment to innovation player experience and performance enables us to constantly improve results and out-perform our

competition



Our electronic bingo products allow bingo operators to offer players many purchase and play options We are continuing to expand our product lines

so bingo operators can offer players more options including terminals that are capable of suppoiting variety of different games Our current

electronic bingo player terminal portfolio includes five portable models one with black and white display and four with color displays two fixed-based

color terminal models and various back-office management systems

In the third quarter of fiscal 2011 we introduced Slingo Jokers WildTM on the GameTech Edge Bingo SystemTM This bingo game provides new

element of challenge and player interaction to bingo by introducing wild numbers and colorful and uniquely branded graphics Slingo Jokers WildTM

was certified by Gaming Laboratories International for use in Native American mailcets in the last quarter of 2011 In the third quarter of fiscal 2011 we

also began development on next generation of hand held player terminals the Explorer2TM designed to support growing libraay of new game

concepts with improved play time and hardware reliability The Explorer2TM was successfully beta-tested and launched during the first quarter of fiscal

2012

The gaming content developed for our VLT segment includes unique video poker and keno games that have allowed us to generate and hold market

share as leaders in the Montana 1ouisiana and South Dakota VLT markets We believe revenue growth will be driven by increasing market share in

our existing markets and expanding product placement into new markets

Expand Internationally

We plan to continue to expand our bingo operations outside of the United States We currently have an installed base of bingo terminals in Canada

and the Philippines International revenue as percentage of our total revenue was 4.8% in fiscal 2011 and 6.3% in fiscal 2010 all of which was

attributable to our bingo segment

Develop Strategic Alliances

We plan to continue to review growth opportunities through strategic alliances that could extend our presence into new geographic markets expand

our customer and product base add new products improve our costs of goods sold and provide operating synergies

Products Bingo

We provide bingo operators with variety ofelectronic player terminals and back-office management systems The newest of these systems is known

as the GameTech Edge Bingo SystemTM This operating system includes Point-of-Sale POS functionality and player tracking forbingo operators that

allows them to consolidate to one system for selling bingo paper and electronics while also loading the appropriate sales information to electronic

player terminals The ChmeTech Edge Bingo SystemTM provides bingo operators verifier that confiuns whether BINGO is legitimate and has been

won on bingo card whether electronic or paper that was sold during the session The GimeTech Edge Bingo SystemTM fully supports bingo hail

management with compliment of back office modules including automated payouts progressive accruals and money tracking to facilitate balancing of

sales and cash for security and accuracy In addition to traditional electronic bingo applications and features the GameTech Edge Bingo SystemTM

also offers new cutting edge features such as virtual flash board Wi-Fi portable units and various new raffle and bingo games

We continue to offer bingo operators back-office management systems known as AllTrak2 and DiamondTM AllTrak2 is typically integrated with our

electronic bingo terminals to provide bingo operators with package of accounting and marketing software that enhances their ability to manage the

bingo hail The AllTrak2 system is Windows-based multi-purpose accounting system for bingo hail operators running on standard PCs AllTrak2

operates together with the DiamondTM system and significantly enhances the user interface at POS terminals In addition the systems provide

inventory-tracking capabilities for bingo paper complete sales data and player tracking systems



We design our electronic bingo systems to provide maximum appeal to bingo players and hail operators The primaiy benefits to players of our bingo

terminals include the following

the ability to play up to 2000 electronic bingo cards during one bingo game depending on jurisdictional regulations which is significantly

more than can be played on paper

the ability to electronically and simultaneously mark the called numbers on all cards being played thereby reducing player error in missing or

mismarking number

the ability to alert the player upon attaining BINGO thereby reducing the chance playermisses winning prize and

the
ability to expand game content and betting options to increase revenues and player appeal

Our termmals are also designed to enhance the entertainment value of playing bingo Our terminals allow players to customize certain aspects of the

user interfisce and our fixed-based terminals incorporate picture-in-picture video and audio technology In many markets players can also play

alternative games such as solitaire for entertainment only during and in between bingo sessions Our portable temiinals allow players to play bingo

electronically while sitting in players preferred seat or moving around the bingo hail The ease ofusing our electronic bingo terminals makes playing

bingo possible for players with physical disabilities that may prevent them from playing bingo with traditional paper cards which nonmlly involves

marking multiple paper bingo cards by hand with an ink dauber We believe that these aspects of our electronic bingo systems make them more

appealing to players than papercards

We currently market two types of electronic bingo products portable and fixed-based with three electronic bingo systems Many bingo hail operators

offer players both portable and fixed-base terminals in order to satisf valying customer preferences and price levels

Portable Bingo Terminals

Our portable bingo terminals operate similarly
to our fixed-based terminals We currently have seven models of portable bingo terminals in commercial

use Our color portable terminals are the Eplorer2 Explorer Traveler llTmckei Travelerd and TED2C Our legacy black and white terminal

is the TED As numbers are input into the terminals either manually or by way of wireless communication each bingo card being played is then

simultaneously marked These terminals can mark up to 2000 cards per game depending on the device In portable systenz the file server caller unit

and sales units are siniilarto and can be shared with those of fixed-based systems The portable tenninal can recognize any bingo game fonmt that the

bingo operator wishes to play and alerts the player both audibly and visually when BINGO has been achieved

The Fxplorer2lM is GameTechs newest portable Wi-Fi bingo device with enhanced 10 touch screen 10 hours of continuous batteiy life and new

colorful design that is both attractive and rugged enough to withstand the bingo hall environment The Explorer2 supports the latest bingo games

including Slingo Jokers WIIdTM and interfaces exclusively with the ClimeTech EDGE Bingo SystemTM

The ExplorerTM is wireless portable terminal with brilliant 10.2 inch color touch screen The Explorer supports the latest Wi-Fl 802.11 technology

two hot-s wappable high capacity lithium ion batteiy packs for continuous play and is expandable to incorporate variety of new gaming content in

addition to session bingo

The Traveler ff1M is portable player terminal introduced in 2008 based on the original Traveler design with enhanced two-way Wi-Fi communications

to allow players to purchase more cards mid-session and increase speed of sales for the operators This easy-to-use device operates exclusively on the

new GameTech Edge Bingo SystemTM



The Tmckei portable terminal offers low-cost color alternative to players prefemng the familiarity of our TED terminal The Tracker was developed

in 2006 with widespread installations in 2007 and 2008 The Tracker incorporates many of the favored features of our TED terminal with the added

enhancement of high-resolution color screen The Tracker terminal can display up to bingo cards at time while monitoring the play of 600 cards in

single game The Tracker interfaces with our AllTrak2 the DiamondTMPOS system orthe new GameTech Edge Bingo SystemTM

The Travelei is portable player terminal introduced in 2003 that is designed to cater to players who prefer compact portable terminal with color

display and wireless communications The Traveler can display up to cards at one time and monitors the play of up to 2000 cards in single game

The tenninal utilizes our crate loading methodology eliminating the need to load players infomiation into an individual terminal at the POS station

This easy-to-use device operates using either AllTrak2 back-office system DiamondTM system or the new Gamelech Edge Bingo SystemTM

The TED2C terminal with its color screen and clear easy-to-see graphics is similar to our fixed-based bingo systena and offers superior player

experience The TED2C terminal can display up to 16 cards at one time and plays up to 600 cards in one game This easy-to-use device operates using

either the AllTrak2 back-office system or DiamondTM system

Fixed-Based Bingo Systems

Our fixed-based bingo systeim consist of local area network of PC computers including server caller unit sales unit and the players terminals

All terminals in the fixed-based bingo system use PC hardware and are operated with touch screen displays complete fixed-based bingo system

consists of the following

System Server The GamelechR EDGE Bingo SystemTM is comprehensive operational software platform that enables bingo management and staff to

efficiently run monitor and report Bingo games in real time

Caller Unit The caller unit which is located on the callers stand allows the caller to communicate with each players terminal by use of touch

screen By simply touching the screen the caller enters ball numbers drawn game number game patterns and wild numbers The caller unit connects

with each players fixed-based tenninal to veri1 electronic bingo card images and enables the winning electronic bingo card images and paper cards to

be displayed on monitors within the bingo hall The caller unit contains modemthat allows us to access data remotely enabling us to monitor the use

of our teminals Data from the system is also available to assist bingo hall operators in managing their halls

Sales Unit The sales unit is point-of-sale terminal where all customer purchases are transacted Using touch screen the cashier activates player

buy-in choices for each session while the unit automatically calculates pricing and totals The player receives printed receipt itemized by date

session and quantity of electronic bingo card images purchased

Player Terminal Each players terminal is housed in customized metal or wooden table with up to sixterminals per table Fixed-based terminals can be

played in automatic mode or in manual mode which requires the players to enter each number called Players can switch between the two modes as

they choose if they are playing in jurisdiction that allows for automatic daubing In either mode up to 600 electronic bingo card images can be

marked simultaneously Players can cycle through all of their electronic bingo card images while play is proceeding The players terminal marks the

numbers called on each electronic bingo card image being played either automatically or after the player enters the number called The terminal

displays the players three electronic bingo card images that are closest to BINGO



Products YLT

VLTEquipment and Game Content

We conduct an ongoing research and development program to enhance the features and capabilities of our various product lines to maintain

competitive advantage in the marketplace to extend our product line with new games and applications and to continually reduce the cost of both

product development and product manufacturing During fiscal 2011 we spent approximately $1.5 million for company-sponsored VLT research and

development activities compared with approximately $2.9 million during fiscal 2010

meTech has developed many unique game themes that include rich visual content as well as unique game pay tables that are designed to attract

customers seeking variety of gaming experiences In addition we have acquired externally developed unique game content to complement our game

library We will continue to develop game content internally and selectively acquire game content externally Development of game content in the

future will be key initiative as we look to expand ourpresence in the existing markets as well as expand into new markets We also license our game

content to other manuflicturers in select jurisdictions On October 31 2011 in consideration of $1.0 million fee the company licensed five game titles

to American utniing Systems Ai in the state of Illinois The license agreement also includes three-year option for AGS to license additional VLT

game titles for use in Illinois fromthe Companys library of existing VLT titles and right of first tefusaland option to license newly developed VLT

titles for the Illinois market in exchange for $200000 per title selected

Video Lottery Terminals

Our product line of VLTs consists of variety of configurations including single screen upright and slant top machines as well as our dual-screen

Megaplex series that is available in both upright and slant top versions VLTs are electronic games of chance played on video terninals Visually and

internally they are similar and sometimes identical to slot machines VLTs are video-based overseen by state lottery agencies and can be monitored

controlled and audited by central computer system By contrast slot machines can be video or reel-based may be overseen by other regulatory

agencies and may be independent of central control system The VLTs are typically configured with multi-game and multi-denomination options to

allow for greater flexibility
in attracting variety of gaming customers as one machine may offer many different combinations of games by varying

denominations

Sales Marketing and Distribution

Bingo As global gaming technology company dedicated to the development and manufacturing of cutting-edge gaming entertainment products and

systems lameTech holds predominant position in the North American bingo market with its interactive electronic bingo systems portable and fixcd

based gaming units as well as complete hall management modules Our bingo products are sold through an internal sales force that sells directly to

bingo hall and casino operators as well as through local and regional third-party distributors 1meTech strives to work with only those third-party

distributors who have the largest market share or other unique advantages in bingo supplies for their respective geographic areas Our distributors

typically work in defined geographic jurisdictions under one to three-year agreements with exclusivity provisions with 3ameTech where

applicable This exclusivity allows us to align our mutual interests in the market and seek to maintain or strengthen our market positions

Our sales force works to support our network of distributors as well as service customers directly in non-distributor markets Our staff of sales

personnel consults with bingo operators to optimize the use of electronics in their games and to improve their profitability

Our marketing strategy is to target bingo players and provide new game content and concepts that appeal to wider player base and to re-energize the

bingo market We will continue to offer superior suppoit forbingo hail operators by providing bingo systems that include

installation by us at no cost to the bingo opemtor

training sessions for the bingo staff

promotional sessions to introduce players to the system

advertising and point-of-sale materials and

an ongoing service and maintenance program



VLT Our VLT equipment is sold through an internal sales force that sells directly to gaming operators as well as distributors In Montana West

Virginia and South Dakota we primarily sell directly to gaming operators through our sales force In Louisiana as required by law we sell to one

distributor who then sells product to the gaming operators throughout the state Our marketing strategy is to target both large and small gaming

operators and demonstrate the benefits and competitive advantages of our VLT equipment that is focused specifically on the uniqueness of local VLT

and route markets

In May 2008 we entered into Purchase Sale and Software Development Agreement with Rocky Mountain Industries LLC RMI of Montana

leader in the Montana gaming market The agreement called for an initial order of 500 gaming machines with an option for the customerto purchase an

additional 500 machines The contract specified new cabinet style for the gaming machines and also called for the Company to provide custom

development of five new games and retrofit sixteen existing games Initial Custom lames The agreement also called for the Company to develop

and provide an additional ten custom games over the next several years Additional Custom Games In October of 2008 the Company obtained

approval ofthe new cabinet from Montana laming Control Division In March 2010 the Company began discussions with RMI to amend certain terms

and provisions in their 2008 purchase sale and software development agreement The discussions began as result of delays in completing the

custom software development for this project which were in part due to changes to the product requirements and specifications In October 2010 the

Company executed an amendment to the agreement with RMI that includes among other things reduction in the number of units for the initial order

from 500 units to 300 units and changes to the deliveiy schedule for completion and regulatory approval of the Initial Custom Game software the

Additional Custom lame software and for delivery and installation of the gaming devices These changes reduced the aggregate amount of revenue

to the Company that was contemplated under the onginal agreement In January 2011 the Company completed development of the Initial Custom

Games obtained final regulatory approval and in February 2011 completed the installation of the initial order of 300 units The Company has continued

on with the contract which includes obligations to develop and deliver up to nine custom games over the next nine years

Target Markets

Bingo GameTech targets thousands of charities licensed to operate bingo games in the United States and Canada We also target Native American

bingo halls and commercial entities in the United States and foreign markets As of October 30 2011 we had terminals in over 286 locations serving

over 343 bingo operators For the 52 weeks ended October 30 2011 portable terminals generated approximately 78% of our bingo revenue and fixed-

based terminals generated approximately 22% of our bingo revenue

VLT As of October 30 2011 we sold VLT equipment parts and related software in seven states with Louisiana Montana and South Dakota casino

markets representing 99.7% of our overall VLT sales The VLT revenue stream and percentage contribution in these major markets consists of the sale

of new equipment 635% used equipment 10.2% software upgrades 1.8% and parts and other 24.5%

Materials and Supplies

We purchase all bingo and VLT hardware components from various domestic and international suppliers Our bingo and VLT components are

assembled and systems are configured or manuflictured at our facilities in Reno Nevada and Billings Montana

Intellectual Property

We regard our products as proprietary and rely on patent copyright trademark and trade secret laws to protect our proprietary rights and to protect

our investment in research and development

Patents We own approximately 19 United States and international patents and applications most of which are related to future products and methods

that have not yet been introduced potential product modifications and improvements and to products we do not currently offer With few exeeptions

all of these patents are either owned by the Company or are subject to an exelusive license for gaming purposes Some of the patents primarily our

game play method patents that we own are issued only in the United States majority ofthe technology is developed internally however some of

our technology has been purchased and/or has been licensed



Trademarks We own numerous United States and international trademark registrations applications and common lawtrademarks Some of the more

important marks include AilTrak AllTmk2 B3 Big Bad Bingo Bingo Boss Blazing Quarters Cadillac Bingo Cash Countdown Cow

Abduction Crazy Pays Crystal Ball Bingo Demolition Poker Diamond Gamblers Edge Gamblers Edge Poker Gamelech

GameTech Edge Bingo System Gamelech Elite GameTech Phoenix High Country Montana Poker Hot Flush Jukebox Jungle Jokers

Jackpot Montana Choppers MegaPlex Miners Treasure Montana Choppers Montana Poker II Nevada Classic Payline Poker

Pays All Poker Penny Power Peter Jacobsen Challenge Keno Poker Dogs Raging Rubies Royal Touch Sands Of Time Spill Over

Stacking Cash Keno Stars and Stripes Keno Sweet Success Sunken Treasure TED TED2C The Electronic Dauber Tracker

Traveler Treasure Hunt Keno Vault ofinld Keno Wild Biker Wild Widow Poker and Who Dat Poker

Other Intellectual Property In addition to patents and trademarks registered and unregistered we also own intellectual property in the form of

copyrights registered and unregistered trade dress and as trade secrets No assurance can be given that we will be successfiul in maintaining the

confidentiality of our trade secrets and other proprietary information Costs associated with defending and pursuing infringement claims can be

substantial In the absence of valid and enforceable patent copyright trademark or trade secret protection we would be vulnerable to competitors

who could lawfully copy our products and technology

Intellectual Property Licenses On occasion we obtain licenses to intellectual property from third parties These licenses are subject to various

conditions and restrictions and typically involve us paying royalties on fixed or per unit basis While we do not believe that any of these current

license agreements are in jeopardy of being teminated we can make no assurance that all ofthese license agreements will remain in effect or that such

licenses can be extended under terms fuvomble to us

Competition

Bingo The electronic bingo industry is characterized by intense competition based on various factors including the ability to enhance bingo hail

operations and to generate incremental revenue for bingo hail operators through product appeal to players ease of use serviceability customer

support and training distribution name recognition and price We compete primarily with other companies providing electronic bingo terminals

including but not limited to Applied/California Concepts Arrow International ECM Electronic Gaming Solutions eQube International FortuNet mc
Pacific Gaming Planet Bingo and Video King In addition we compete with other similar forms of entertainment including casino gaming other forms

of Class II gaming and lotteries Increased competition has resulted and may continue to result in price reductions reduced operating margins

reduced revenue and loss of market share any of which could materially and adversely affect our business operating results and financial

condition Furthermore existing and new competitors may expand their operations in our existing or potential new nisrkets We have attempted to

counter competitive factors by providing superior service new innovative and quality products and software improvements We believe that the

quality of our full array of portable and fixed-based bingo systems combined with superior service and customer support differentiate us from our

competitors

VLT The VLT industry is highly competitive and is driven primarily by the ability of manufacturers to develop appealing video reel video poker and

keno game content as well as the ability to provide their customers with stream of new games to meet ever changing customer needs The

development or acquisition of new game content is critical to remaining competitive in the VLT industry as our competitors continue to develop new

game content By providing our customers with variety ofgame options and configurations we can differentiate our products and services from our

competitors as well as provide for built-in loyalty base of customers for conversion and upgrade sales that can provide steady stream of recurring

revenue We compete primarily with other VLT manufacturers in VLT- and route-based markets including but not limited to International Game

Technology and Spielo International



Gowrnment Regulation

We are subject to regulation and oversight by governmental authorities in virtually all jurisdictions in which we conduct business As of October 30

2011 we held approximately 70 licenses with various regulatoty agencies The regulatory requirerrEnts vary from jurisdiction to jurisdiction

kvemmental regulations may require licenses approvals findings of suitability or qualifications for our company as well as for our products officers

directors certain personnel significant stockholders or other associated parties The term significant stockholder typically refers to any beneficial

owner of 5% or greater of our capital stock Any person who fails or refuses to comply with these regulatory requirements could be subject to

disciplinaiy or legal action which could adversely impact our company including the loss of any existing license the ability to obtain future license

and our ability to conduct business in one or more jurisdictions The licensing approval and finding of suitability processes can be lengthy and

expensive On Native American lands regulations result from the laws ofeach tribe the provisions of IGRA and various tribal-state compacts Many

jurisdictions have comprehensive licensing reporting and operating requirements with respect to the manufacture development assembly support

distribution sale lease use and operation of bingo and bingo-related products including electronic bingo equipment These requirements have

direct impact on the conduct of our day-to-day operations In substantially all jurisdictions in which gaming is legal the regulatory authority imposes

operating restrictions on gaming and on the form of business relations we can have with the gaming operator entities Generally regulatory authorities

may deny applications for licenses other approvals or findings of suitability for any cause they may deemreasonable There can be no assurance that

our company or our hardware or software products personnel officers directors significant stockholders distributors vendors consultants or other

associated parties will receive or be able to maintain any necessary licenses other approvals or findings of suitability The loss of license or

product approval in particular jurisdiction may prohibit us from realizing revenue in that jurisdiction and nny adversely impact our license or product

placements and
ability

to realrze revenue in other jurisdictions Any change in law or regulation by jurisdiction or an unfavorable interpretation of

any law or regulation could adversely impact our ability to earn revenue

Native American Regulation

Imiing on Native American lands including the ternis and conditions under which gaming equipment can be sold or leased to Native American tribes

is or may be subject to licensing and regulation under IGRA and other laws of the federal government the tribes and the host state where applicable

Under IGRA gaming activities are classified as Class II or Ill Class gaming includes social games played solely for prizes of minimal value or

traditional forms ofNative American gaming engaged in as part of or in connection with Native American ceremonies or celebrations Class II gaming

includes bingo and other card games authorized or not
explicitly prohibited and played within the host state but does not include banking card games

such as baccarat orblackjack Class III gaming includes all forms of gaming that are not Class or Class II including slot machines casino style games

or any other games not prohibited by the host state Native American tribe typically conducts Class gaming under IGRA without having entered

into written compact with its host state ifthe host state permits similar forms of gaming but must enter into separate written compact with the state

in order to conduct Class III gaming activities Under IGRA tribes are required to regulate all gaming under ordinances approved by the Chairman of

the National Indian Gaming Commission or NbC These ordinances may impose standards and technical requirements on gaming hardware and

software and may impose registration licensing and background check requirements on gaming equipment manufacturers and suppliers and their

personnel officers directors stockholders distributors vendors and consultants The NIGC has undertaken an effort to provide further
clarity

with

respect to game classification and technical standards and this effort continues The NIGCs final work product may have material adverse effect on

our business results of operations and financial condition

Federal Regulation

The Federal Gambling Devices Act of 1962 also called the Johnson Act generally makes it unlawful for person to manufacture deliver or receive

gaming machines gaming machine-type devices and components across state lines or to operate gaming machines unless that person has first

registered with the U.S Department of Justice We are registered with the Department of Justice In addition the Johnson Act imposes various record

keeping annual registration equipment registration and equipment identification requirements Violation of the Revised Johnson Act may result in

seizure and forfeiture of the equipment as well as other penalties Any change in law or regulation or an unfavorable interpretation of any law or

regulation could adversely impact our ability to earn revenue or could require us to substantially modify our products or operations at significant

expense



Regulation of Electronic Bingo Systems

Our electronic bingo products including our portable fixed-based teiminals and server-based gaming encounter greater regulation than bingo played

with paper cards Applicable federal state Native American and local regulations and enforcement vary significantly by jurisdiction

We believe that electronic bingo is currently permitted in at least 42 of the 50 states Because many state laws and regulations are silent or ambiguous

with respect to electronic bingo changes in regulatory interpretations or enforcement personnel could impact the continued operation of electronic

bingo in some of these states In addition some regulatory authorities require the demonstmtion testing approval ormodification of electronic bingo

systems prior to placement

Systems Security Requirements

The integrity and security of electronic bingo systems mobile gaming systems and other gaming products are closely scrutinized by certain

jurisdictions in which we operate Changes in the technical requirements for approved electronic bingo systems in various charitable Native American

commercial and military jurisdictions could prohibit us flm operating in those jurisdictions or could require us to substantially modif ourproducts at

significant expense

Application of Future orAdditional Regulatory Requirements

We intend to seek the necessary licenses approvals and findings of suitability for our company our products or our personnel in jurisdictions in

which we anticipate significant bingo or other gaming activities However these licenses approvals or findings of
suitability may not be obtained

timely if at all and if obtained may be subsequently revoked suspended conditioned or not renewed In addition we may not be able to obtain the

necessary approvals for our future products If regulatory authority in jurisdiction requires license approval or finding of
suitability

and our

company stockholders distributors vendors or consultants fail to seek or do not receive the necessary license or finding of suitability we may be

prohibited from distributing our products for use in the jurisdiction or may be required to develop or distribute our products through other licensed

entities which could result in reduced profit

Employees

As of January 272012 we had approximately 131 full-time and part-time employees We are not subject to collective bargaining agreements with our

employees and we believe that our relations with our employees are good

Item 1A Risk Factors

Not required

Item lB Unresolwd Staff Comments

None

Item Properties

On August 222008 we purchased real property in southeast Reno Nevada The real property consists of approximately 4.9 acres with building of

approximately 115000 square feet that is used as our headquarters and for manufacturing operations We invested approximately $2.7 million in

additional improvements to the interior ofthe building to add office space and provide for the manufacturing and assembly needs of bingo and VLT

equipment The total price of the property along with improvements to the building totalled $10.8 million The loan we obtained to finance the purchase

and improvements to the real property is secured by all of the assets of GameTech International Inc and all of its wholly-owned subsidiaries including

first mortgage on this real property During the quarter ended August 2010 we decided that this real property housing our headquarters and

warehouse space in Reno Nevada would be listed for sale see Note to the consolidated financial statements On December 28 2011 the property

was sold for $6.125 million Pursuant to the temis ofthe Agreement the Company leases significant portion of the property from the buyer pursuant

to the terms of lease agreement Our lease expires April2013 at which time the Company will relocate its corporate offices
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We operated 1790 square-foot site in Southiake Texas for our bingo operations until our lease expired December 31 2010 We lease
facility

in

Billings Montana for our VLT operations 10000 square-foot site which expires in August 2012 In addition we also lease 4600 square-foot facility

in Las Vegas Nevada which expires August 2013 We lease several other storage facilities none of which are material to our operations We believe

that our facilities will be adequate for our needs for the foreseeable future

Item Legal Proceebngs

For infomiation regarding the Companys legal pmceedings see Note to our consolidated financial statements contained herein

Item Remowd and Reserwd

PART II

Item Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Our common stock trades on the OTC Marketplace under the symbol GMTC The following table sets forth high and low sales prices of our common

stockforthe period indicated during each quarterfromOctober3l 2010

High Low

52 Weeks Ended October 312010

First Quarter 1.60 0.01

Second Quarter 2.12 1.50

Third Quarter 2.19 0.59

Fourth Quarter 0.63 0.22

52 weks October 30 2011

First Quarter 0.90 0.25

Second Quarter 0.48 0.20

Third Quarter 0.30 0.17

Fourth Quarter 0.30 0.03

On January 27 2012 the last reported sales price of our common stock was $0.07 per share with 140 record holders of our common stock

For information regarding the Companys equity securities authorized for issuance underthe Companys equity compensation plans all of which have

been approved by the Companys stockholders see Note 10 to the audited consolidated financial statements contained herein

II



Dnidend Policy

During fiscal 2011 and 2010 the Company did not declare or pay any dividends Any payment of dividends in the future will be reviewed by our Board

of Directors and will depend upon among other factors our earnings financial condition capital requirements level of indebtedness contractual

restrictions with respect to the payment of dividends and other considerations that our Board of Directors deems relevant Under our current Credit

Facility any payment of cash dividends requires prior bank approval

Item Selected Financial Data

Not required

Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this

report The following discussion contains certain forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties Our actual results could differ

materially from the expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements

Owriew

We design develop and market bingo gaming devices and bingo operation management systems VLTs slot machines and related software VLTs

slot machines and related software ate collectively referred to as VLT business We report on 52/53 week fiscal year Fiscal years ended October

302011 and October 31 2010 both included 52 weeks The next 53 week year will be the fiscal year ending November 12015

We are domestic and international gaming technology company dedicated to the development and menuflicturing of gaming entertainment products

and systems We hold significant position in the North American bingo market with our interactive electronic bingo systems portable and fixed-

based gaming units and complete hall management modules our Bingo Segment We also hold significant position in select North American VLT

markets primarily Montana Louisiana and South Dakota where we offer video lottery terminals and related gaming equipment and software our VLT

Segment Historically we have generated over 90% of our revenues domestically For fiscal 2011 and 2010 78.3% and 85.5% respectively of our net

revenue came from our Bingo segment

For the 52-week periods ended October 30 2011 fiscal 2011 and October 31 2010 fiscal 2010 our portable bingo terminals fixed-based bingo

terminals and VLT businesses made the following contributions to revenue

2011 2010

Portable Bingo Terminals 60% 67%

Fixed Base Bingo Terminals 18% 19%

VLT/Slot Equipment
22% 14%

We generate revenue by placing electronic bingo systems in bingo halls under contracts based on fixed fee peruse per session fixed weekly

fee per terminal or infrequently percentage of the revenue generated by each terminal Revenue growth for our bingo systems is affected by

player acceptance of electronic bingo as an addition or an alternative to paper bingo Additionally our revenue growth is dependent on our ability
to

expand operations into new markets and our ability to increase our market share in our current markets Fixed-based bingo terminals generate greater

revenue per terminal than portable bingo terminals but also require greater initial capital investment

We typically install our electronic bingo systems at no charge to our customers We capitalize and amortize the installation costs which have not been

material over the expected contract term The cost of the bingo equipment is depreciated over its estimated useful life of three to five years using the

straight-line method

Our VLT business generates revenue from the sale of VLTs new and used software conversion kits content fees license fees participation fees

parts and services For fiscal 2011 96.7% and for fiscal 2010 94.6% of our VLT business sales were derived from the sale of new and used equipment

conversion kits and parts
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Our bingo and VLT expenses consist primarily of service costs associated with our bingo segment and product costs associated with the VLT segment

cost of revenue general and administrative expense sales and marketing expense and research and development expense Service costs associated

with our bingo segment consist primarily of payroll and related expense depreciation and maintenance of equipment placed and regulatoiy

fees Product costs associated with the VLT segment includes primarily parts payroll and related assembly costs associated with the manufactured

products including the write-offofexeess and obsolete inventory General and administrative costs consist of expenses associated with management

of our company and the related support including finance and accounting legal compliance information systems human resources allowance for

doubtful accounts receivable and amortization of intangible assets acquired from the Summit acquisition Sales and marketing expenses consist

primarily of commissions paid to distributors for promoting and supporting our products and compensation paid to our internal sales force to manage

existing customers to generate new customers and to sell additional and upgraded equipment Research and development costs consist primanly of

payroll and related expense and component parts related to the design development and testing of new or materially enhanced games or game themes

for our VLT and slot machines and to develop and test new or materially enhanced wireless server-based bingo systems and improved bingo terminals

Business Segments

Bingo As of October 30 2011 we had bingo devices games and systems in service in 38 states various Native American locations the Philippines

and Canada We market portable handheld and stationary fixed-base bingo player devices unique electronic and paper bingo games such as Big Bad

BingoTM B3TM and Crystal Ball Bingo other related for-fun games such as solitaire and bingo management systems Our devices display

electronic bingo card images for each game and assist the players in managing and marking their bingo cards in physical bingo facilities operated in

charitable Native American commercial and military locations These devices enable players to purchase and play substantially more bingo cards

compared to paper cards typically leading to more fun and greater spend for the player and increased profits for the operator Our bingo management

systems such as Diamond Plus AilTrak and our newest system the IsmeTech Edge Bingo Systen provide bingo operators with important

information regarding the profitability of their bingo hails inventory systems and player tracking demographics among other modules We generally

enter into one to three year contracts with bingo operators for the use of the bingo devices and management systems

During fiscal 2011 deployment of the Game Tech Edge Bingo SystemTM grew to eight states and one province in Canada Many of these installations

also included the deployment of our new ExplorerTM handheld player device which players and operators seemto prefer for its larger screen and other

enhanced capabilities In the third quarter of fiscal 2011 we completed successful field trial of an upgraded version of the Game Tech Edge Bingo

SystemTM at Mohawk Bingo Palace in Hogansburg New York This upgrade included the following additional management functionality modules

inventory management payout center accruals and bank management During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2011 we received Gaming Laboratories Inc

GLI certification for this latest release of the GameTech Edge Bingo SystemTM which will enable wider release of this system into the tribal bingo

market Further enhancements to the Game Tech Edge Bingo SystemTM were released during the final quarter of fiscal 2011 which were coupled with

the release of our newest hand held bingo device the Explorer ITIM The Explorer Ii will provide the advanced functionality of the Explorer at

substantially lower production cost making this product available to wider variety of customers Internationally operations in the U.K ceased

during fiscal 2011 however the Company has expanded penetration in the Philippines market with the introduction of the TrnvelerTM along with the

B3TM stand-alone systems the Game Tech Edge Bingo SystemTM and Crystal Ball Bingo
TM

During fiscal 2011 the Companys management also developed and implemented certain strategic plans focused the introduction of new bingo

products and systems including new stand alone bingo verification system known as the Bingo BossTM which was introduced in December

2011 on limited basis the development of our next generation bingo management system Ga me Tech PhoenixT and development of new

low production cost portable bingo device The GameTech PhoenixTM system which is expected to be introduced during fiscal 2012 is being

designed to perform all the functions of previous operating systems as well as the capabilities needed to satis1 the needs of larger tribal casinos and

commercial bingo halls and casinos These operators demand higher level of security and accountability as well as an enhanced set of functional

features which the Game Tech PhoenixTM system will support The Game Tech PhoenixTM system also addresses number ofcustomer entertainment

needs and allows GameTech to focus on different variations of the game of bingo and offer unique bingo game content The system was redesigned

from the ground up based on the experience of past products as well as emerging technologies not available during the design of previous

products The new low production cost portable bingo device has also been design from the ground up and is expected to offer unique form-factor

and more engaging user interface
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VLT We also manufacture and sell video lotteiy terminals VLTs associated gaming equipment related software and game content collectively

called the VLT business We entered the VLT business on March 28 2007 with our acquisition of substantially all of the assets of Summit

Amusement Distributing Ltd Our VLTs are typically sold to mute operators bar/tavern gaming operators and distributors

During fiscal 2011 our VLT product development efforts remained focused on products specifically designed for several new markets as well as

providing new and improved platforms and game content to our existing markets During fiscal 2011 we also increased our efforts in pursuing game

content licensing opportunities through other manuflicturers and distributors of ganing products We continue to develop market specific products

and games However our ability to continue to develop these VLT products and our ability to continue to develop new bingo products in order to

penetrate new markets and maintain and grow existing markets will largely depend on our ability to generate increased cash and/or raise additional

capital as may be restricted by capital expenditure limits imposed by our lenders under our existing credit facility For additional infomtion see

discussion within this Item under Liquidity and Capital Resources

Fiscal 2011 lllghlights

During fiscal 2011 we incurred net loss of $6.4 million compared to net loss of $20.4 million for fiscal 2010 Significant thctors attributing to the

fiscal 2011 loss include

$4.3 million or l2.2% decrease in revenue primarily due to declining economy and increased regional competition offset in part by decreases

in cost ofrevenue of approximately $1.3 million

$l.6million increase in VLT sales

$3.5 million reduction in employee costs fromprior year

$2.9 million lower provision forbad debt

$1.9 million inaimnt of assets held for sale

$1.1 million decrease in RD project costs

$1.0 million decrease in distributor commissions

$9.4 million lower provision for income taxes

Significant subsequent events see Note 17 occurring after the year ended October 302011 include

Sale of the colporate headquarters for $6.125 million of which substantially all the proceeds went toward the reduction ofdebt

Entering into First Amendment to Amended and Restated Loan Agreement and Waiver of Defaults with the Ienders

$0.5 million received fromLehman Brothers in settlement of our auction rate securities claim

Our capital expenditures in fiscal 2011 were $3.6 million decrease ofapproximately 32.1% from $5.3 million during fiscal 2010

During fiscal 2011 there were changes in management of the Company On April 13 2011 Kevin Painter was elected to serve on our Board of

Directors Simultaneously the Company entered into consulting agreement with Mr Painter to advise the Company in its operations and provide

guidance and assistance with contract manufacturers and suppliers On May 11 2011 Mr Painter was appointed to serve as Chairman of the Board of

Directors On June 21 2011 the Board of Directors appointed Mr Painter to serve as the Companys President and ChiefExecutive Officer On March

12011 Andrew Robinson was promoted to Chief Financial Officer fium Vice President of Operations

During fiscal 2011 the Companys newly appointed management developed and implemented certain strategic plans focused on improving the

Companys cash position through the introduction new bingo products and systems including new stand alone bingo verification system known as

the Bingo Boss which was introduced in Deceither 2011 on limited basis and pursuing game content licensing opportunities with the VLT

segment During fiscal 2011 management also commenced development efforts on next generation bingo operating system and new low cost

portable bingo device both of which are expected to be introduced during fiscal 2012
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Recently Issued Accounting Standards Not Yet Adopted

In May 2011 FASB issued an update ASU No 2011-04 to ASC 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures to develop common requirements for

measuring fair value and for disclosing information about fair value measurements in accordance with IAAP and IFRS This update is effective for

interim and fiscal years beginning after December 15 2011 The Company does not feel that this will have material impact on the consolidated

financial statements

No other recently issued accounting pronouncements not yet adopted are expected to have material impact on our financial position results of

operations or cash flows There were no new accounting pronouncements that had material impact on our fmancial statements during the fiscal year

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations discuss our consolidated financial statements which have

been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States GAAP The preparation of these financial

statements in accordance with JAAP requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts These estimates may require

revision in future periods On an ongoing basis we reconsider our estimates and judgments for allowance for doubtful accounts estimated fair value

of investments obsolescence of VLT inventoiy and Bingo equipment estimated fair value of assets held for sale impairment of goodwill and other

intangibles and long-lived assets loss contingencies amortization of debt acquisition costs provision for income taxes and stock-based

compensation of which all are significant estimates made by management which could vaiy materially within the next year We base our estimates and

judgments generally on historical experience and on various other factors including managements plans that we believe are reasonable under the

circumstances

We believe that except as discussed below we do not employ any critical accounting policies or estimates that are either selected from among

available alternatives or require the exercise of significant management judgment to apply or that if changed are likely to affect future periods The

following summarizes our critical estimates and policies

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue when the following criteria are met

Persuasive evidence of an arrangement between us and ourcustomer exists

delivery has occurred bingo terminals are available or ready for play or services have been rendered

the price is fixed or determinable and

collectability is reasonably assured which often requires the exercise ofjudgment in assessing the credit worthiness of customers

We earn our revenue in variety ofways We offer our products for lease or sale We also sell service and software updates for equipment previously

sold or leased Shipping and handling charges to customers are recorded in net revenues with the corresponding expense recorded in cost ofrevenues

Placement ofBingo Equipment

Revenue is recognized for bingo terminals and bingo systems installed as single element placed in bingo halls under contracts based on fixed fee

per use per session fixed weekly fee per terminal or percentage of the revenue generated by each terminal Revenue recognition is key

component of our results of operations and determines the timing of certain expenses such as commissions
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Sale of VLTProducts and Contracted Production

Product sales include primarily the sale of equipment pails and game content including conversion kits Infrequently our arrangements call for

receipt of recurring participation revenue which has not been material in lieu of predetermined sales price payable upon delivery typically with 30-

day terms Revenues are recorded net of incentives discounts sales taxes and other taxes of similar nature Revenues related to contracted

production are recognized as the related work is delivered following testing and submission of application for approval by state regulatory

agencies Amounts received prior to completing the earnings process are deferred until revenue recognition criteria are met Complex systems and/or

any multiple element contracts may take several months to complete

Obsolete and Slow Moving Equipment vailable for Placement and Component Parts

We provide reserves for bingo terminals and related equipment and parts We also provide reserves for slow moving components of our VLT products

based on historical use patterns and future demand estimates that are fiquently affected by technological developments

Software Development Capitalization

We capitalize costs related to the development of certain software products that are to be used as integral parts of product or process to be sold or

leased after technological feasibility of the software has been established and all research and development activities for the other components or

processes arc complete We also capitalize qualified costs associated with significant enhancements to existing products We consider new product

to be technologically feasible once it has been submitted to the testing laboratory of state agency We cease capitalizing costs when the product is

available for general release to our customers We amortize the costs on straight-line method over the estimated economic life of the product

typically three to five years beginning when the product is available for general release Determination of the estimated economic life of product

requires the exercise of significant judgment by management particularly about the potential popularity and acceptance of the product Historical

results of similar products planned future releases of other products and other technological flictors are considered when making these

determinations

Allowance for Doubtful collection ofAccounts Receivable

We perform evaluations of the credit worthiness of our Bingo and VLT segment customers including distributors which in some jurisdictions perform

billing and collection functions These evaluations are performed prior to issuing credit and on an ongoing basis thereafter In making this evaluation

and in establishing allowances for doubtful collection of accounts receivable from specific customers we consider the possible effect of economic

trends changes in customer payment terms and historical collection experience We recognize that the longer an amount is outstanding the less likely

collection becomes Accordingly based on historical collection results we also provide general allowance for accounts receivable from customers

not specifically analyzed based on percentage of the totals by aging category In determining these percentages we review historical write-offs of

receivables payment trends and other available information In those instances where ourdistnbutors are responsible for
billing

and collecting our

estimates also consider possible non-payment by both the distributor and the distributors customers

Impairment of Long-lived Assets Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

We review long-lived assets whenever events or changes in cireumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be

recoverable Recoverability of long-lived assets are measured by comparison of the carrying amount ofthe asset to estimated future undiscounted

cash flows expected to be generated by the asset as if debt free If such assets are considered to be impaired the impairment to be recognized is

measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets
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We review goodwill and other non-amortizable intangibles for possible impaiiment at least annually in the third fiscal quarter and more frequently

when there is evidence that ciitunistances have changed materially The analysis is performed at reporting unit level for goodwill by comparing the

estimated fair value of the unit with its canying value including goodwill If the fair value is less than the carrying value the impairment to be

recognized is measured by the amount by which the canying amount of the goodwill exeeeds the fair value of the reporting unit goodwill The

estimated fair values of our reporting units are estimated using market multiple comparable transaction and discounted cash flow methodologies

among others and related valuation metrics that market participants would use The weight assigned to one or more methods may vaiy from period to

period depending on evolving events and perceived current relevance Some of these methods require that we forecast prospective cash flows In

preparing prospective cash flow analysis we consider current trends and planned activities in the context of threats and opportunities including

regulatoiy developments among others within our target competitive markets

Our evaluations of goodwill and other non-amortizing intangible assets for possible inqairment also require consideration of recent sale transactions

and listings of similarbusiness components and individual assets to determine their estimated fair value Once an impairment of goodwill or other

intangible assets has been recorded it cannot be reversed

Share-based Compensation

We use the Black-Scholes valuation model to estimate the fair value of share-based compensation at the award grant date Significant judgment is

required in the selection of input assumptions including estimated stock volatility forfeiture rates expected dividends and the length of time that the

options would remain outstanding See Note 10 of our Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information

Legal Contingencies

We are cumently involved in various legal claims and legal proceedings Periodically we review the status of each significant matter and assess our

potential financial exposure If the potential loss fromany claim or legal proceeding is considered probable and the amount can be estimated we accme

liability for the estimated loss Significant judgment is required in both the determination of probability and the determination as to whether an

exposure can be reasonably estimated

Because of uncertainties related to these matters accnials are based only on the best information available at the time As additional information

becomes available we reassess the potential liability
related to our pending claims and litigation and revise our estimates

Income Taxes

We are subject to federal state and/or local income taxes in the United States and in certain foreign jurisdictions Determination of the appropriate

amount and classification of income taxes depends on several factors including estimates of probability of realization of deferred income taxassets

sustainability of uncertain taxpositions and the timing ofincome taxpayments as affected by taxplanning strategies The ability to realize the deferred

tax assets is evaluated through the forecasting of taxable income in each jurisdiction using historical and projected future operating results the

reversal of existing temporary differences and the availability of tax planning strategies Valuation allowances are recorded to reduce deferred ta

assets when it is more likely than not that tax benefit will not be realized Changes in tax laws enacted tax rates geographic mix or estimated annual

taxable income could change ourvaluation of deferred taxassets and liabilities which in turn would affect ourtaxprovision We carefully monitormany

factors including the impact ofcurrent economic conditions and the length of time that losses may be carried forward to offset future income in our

valuation of deferred tax assets Our decision to provide 100% valuation allowance for the deferred taxassets beginning in the second quarter of

fiscal 2010 is primarily due to our continuing history of operating losses market declines and related lower sales forecasts associated with the VLT

business As ofOctober3O2011valuation allowances fordeferredtaxassets totaled $14.7million

We also evaluate positions taken or to be taken on our income tax returns for sustainability upon audit by the taxing authorities This assessment

presumes that tax authorities evaluate the technical merits of transactions individually with full knowledge ofall flicts and cireumstances surrounding

the issue Changes in facts or information as well as the expiration of statutes of limitations and/or settlements with tax jurisdictions may result in

material adjustments to these estimates in the future In this regard assuming certain positions will not be sustained we have accrued $1.3 million as

component of income taxes payable of which $981 thousand is tax and $307 thousand is interest and penalties Such penalties and interest are included

in our provision for income taxes For additional information regarding unrecognized tax positions see Note 11 to our Consolidated Financial

Statements contained herein
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth certain selected consolidated financial data for the fiscal years ended October 302011 Fiscal 2011 and October 31

2010 Fiscal 2010

52 Week Periods Faded October 302011 and October 3l2010

In Thousands

Cons olithted Bingo YLT Corporate

52 Week 52 Week

Period Period Change Change Change Change Change Change Change

Ended Faded FaraleI Faorable/ FarableI Fawrablel FasoraHe/ Fa%urablel FaorableI

1013012011 10/31/2010 Unfasurable Unfaiirable Unfaorable Unfaorable Lnfaorable Unfavurable 1nfarable

Net Revenue 30867 35171 4304$ 5891 19.6% 1587 311% -%

Cost ofrevenues

excluding

depreciation

amortization 11059 11131 72 763 11.2% 691 16.1%

Depreciation and

amortization 3854 5046 1192 1218 24.4% 26 49.1% -%

14913 16177 1264 1981 168% 717 16.5% -%

Gross Pmfit 15954 18994 3040 3910 21.4% 870 115.5% -%

Operating

Expenses

General and

administrative 7227 10906 3679 310 112.3% 3282 132.0% 707 8.1%

Sales and

marketing 6293 9627 3334 1874 25.4% 1015 71.5% 445 53.2%

Research

and

development 3685 5958 2273 765 28.8% 1420 49.4% 88 20.4%

Depreciation

and

amortization 1527 1400 127 7.0% 322 35.5% 201 49.5%

1nainnent

loss assets

held for sale 1885 2870 985 -% 985 34.3%

Summit

Amusement

settlement 1370 1370 -% 1370 100.0% -%

Gain on

sale of bingo

equipment 633 633 633 l00.0% -% -%

20617 28758 8141 1690 18.4% 4025 63.7% 2426 18.3%

Income loss from

operations 4663 9764 5101 2220 24.6% 4895 88.0% 2426 18.3%

Other income

expense

Interest

expense 2020 2111 91

1nairment

of

investments

175 175

Gain on sale

of

investments 944 944

Other net 289 143 146

Income loss

before income



taxes benefit 6394 10963 4569

Income taxes

benefit 26 9393 9419

Net income loss 6368$ 20356$ 13988

Certain costs are allocated between our segments based on genemi overhead allocation metrics as well as specific allocations based on actual time and

amount spent on each segment The following is discussion of the reasons for the changes in the reported amounts of the various presentation

classifications in fiscal 2011 as compared to fiscal 2010 by segment as reflected in the above table

Net Revenue

The decrease in net bingo revenue is primarily due to pricing pressures and hall closures from adverse economic conditions particularly in the

charitable bingo market VLT net revenues increased compared to prior year due to increased sales ofnew equipment in Montana iIm the completion

of the first phase of our 2008 Purchase Sale and Software Development Agreement with Rocky Mountain Industries LLC During 2011 and 2012 we

flulfilled the development ofthe initial five custom games and sixteen retrofit games and delivered 300 units

Cost of Revenue

The decrease in Bingo cost of revenue is primarily due to decrease in current depreciation expense $1.2 million as the Traveler and Trackerbecame

filly depreciated staff reductions $0.7 million to align our costs to lower business levels and reduction in contracted labor $0.3 million offset in

part by increased amortization $0.1 million related to the acquired license rights for the Explorer VLT cost of revenue was up slightly compared to

prior year and is directly related to the increase in VLT cost of equipment and component parts $1.9 million associated with the completion ofthe first

phase of our agreement with Rocky Mountain Industries RMI where the Company developed the initial custom five games and sixteen retrofit games

and delivered 300 units offset by decreases in write-offs of obsolete equipment and parts $1.4 million compared to the prior year
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Gross Profit

Bingo gross profit decreased in 2011 due to 19.6% decline in net revenues as revenues declined fhster than right sizing expenses

VLT gross profit increased primarily due to higher revenues fromthe sale of new equipment in Montana

Operating Expenses

General and Administrative The increase in Bingo general and administrative operating expenses in current year was primarily from an increase in bad

debt of$0.3 million The decrease in VLT general and administrative operating expenses in current year was due to $3.3 million inrovement in bad

debt Other general and administrative operating expenses that decreased were employee costs from staffing reductions and legal fees offset in part

by increased costs associated with ongoing debt compliance and restrocturing efforts

Sales and Marketing Bingo sales and marketing expenses decreased due to lower distributor commissions based on lower sales and reductions in

employee costs reducing the economic life of an intangible offset by the effect of reclassifing VLT sales and marketing expenses improved from

reductions in both employee costs and promotional expenses

Research and Development Bingo research and development expenses decreased as result of reduced project costs as certain projects deemed

unfeasible were discontinued VLT research and development expenses decreased as result of reductions in staffing and lower project costs as

certain projects deemed unfeasible were discontinued

Depreciation and amortization Depreciation and amortization increased as result of reducing the economic life ofan intangible in the fourth quarter

offset by the effect ofreclassiling ourcorporate headquarters to assets held for sale during the third quarter of fiscal 2010 Assets held for sale once

reclassified as such are no longer depreciated rather they are periodically evaluated for possible impairment

Impairment of Asset Held for Sale During fiscal 2010 it was decided that the real property housing the Company headquarters and warehouse space

in Reno Nevada would be listed for sale Accordingly the real estate was reclassified as held for sale and written down $2.9 million in 2010 and an

additional $1.9 million in 2011

Summit Amusement Settlement During fiscal 2010 the Company received settlement of $1.4 million related to dispute with the Seller of Summit

Aniisement Distributing Ltd Summit regarding the closing net working capital of Summit on the date we acquired the business No similar

transaction occurred in 2011

Gain on sale ofBingo equipment During fiscal 2010 the Company sold bingo equipment for $0.6 million with no similar transaction occurring in 2011

Other Income Expense

Interest Expense Interest expense of $2.0 million compared to $2.1 million for the 52 weeks ended October 31 2010 was impacted unfavorably by higher

interest payments

Impairment of investments In the third quarter of 2010 the Company wrote down the net canying value of its Auction Rate Securities to zero There

was no comparable transaction in the same period for the current year

Gain on sale of investments The Company sold auction rate securities for gain of $0.9 million in 2010 There was no comparable sale for the current

year

Other net Increases in other net are related to legal settlement and one time non-refundable deposit by an outside party that was recognized as

income perthe agreement related to potential commercial relationship
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Liquidity and Cajital Resources

As of October 30 2011 ourprincipal sources of liquidity included cash and equivalents of$1.4 million restricted cash of $0.2 million and net accounts

receivable of $2.9 million As of October 30 2011 we had negative working capital of $22.6 million compared to negative working capital of $19.8

million as of October 31 2010 decrease of $2.8 million The decrease in working capital of $2.8 million is related to operational decreases in current

assets of $9.6 million and current liabilities of $6.8 million Of the decreases in current liabilities $4.7 million was related to pay downs on our debt and

interest rate swap

Operatin2 Activities

Operating activities provided $4.8 million ofcash for the 52 weeks ended October 302011 compared to $6.4 million for the comparable period in 2010

Operating assets decreased including net accounts receivable $1.0 million taxes receivable $2.6 million and inventoy $2.3 million Decreases in

net accounts receivable were due to declines in revenues decreases in income taxes receivable resulted from receipt of our 2006 income tax refund claim

and the decrease in inventoiy was due to the sale and shipment ofpmduct

Operating liabilities decreased $1.6 million primarily as result of $2.2 million reduction in deferred revenues related to shipment ofproduct under the

first phase of the Rocky Mountain Industries LLC agreement

During the 52 weeks ended October 31 2010 cash provided from operating activities was $6.4 million which consisted of net loss of $20.4 million

adjusted positively by $8.2 million for depreciation amortization obsolescence provisions valuation allowance for deferred taxes of $13.5 million

approximately $2.2 million in bad debt expenses impairment of assets held for sale of $2.9 million and $2.1 million decrease in net accounts receivable

offset by $1.6 million in gains on sales of investments and bingo equipment and $0.6 million in defemed revenues

Instin Activities

Investing activities used approximately $4.0 million of cash during the 52 weeks ended October 30 2011 compared to $3.9 million used for the

comparable period in 2010 The $4.0 million use of cash primarily consisted ofthe purchase of bingo equipment for $2.6 million deposits of $0.9 million

on purchases ofbingo equipment and purchase of intangibles of $0.5 million During the 52 weeks ended October31 2010 the $3.9 million use ofcash

consisted of $3.5 million of capital expenditures for bingo equipment and $1.8 million in acquisition of license to manufacture and distribute portable

hand-held gaming device offset by $1.3 million in proceeds from the sale of auction rate securities Under the terms of our Credit Facility we are

permitted to expend up to $2.5 million for bingo equipment during fiscal 2012 which is our intent

Financinc Activities

Financing activities used $1.5 million during the 52 weeks ended October 30 2011 which consisted of $5.3 million used to pay down portion of the

Credit Facility and $0.5 million in closing fees incurred as result of amending our Credit Facility offset by net $4.3 million provided by restricted cash

and proceeds fromborrowings The $3.8 million used during the 52 weeks ended October 31 2010 consisted of $6.3 million used to pay offoutstanding

indebtedness oflet by proceeds from borrowings under our Revolver portion of our Credit Facility ofapproximately $0.9 million and borrowings under

our Line of Credit facility of$l .3 million and $0.3 million on term-loan interest

On November 2011 we entered into purchase and sale agreement to sell certain real property and improvements and certain other assets including

approximately 4.9 acres of land an industrial
facility consisting of approximately 15000 square feet and certain other assets related to the property to

Kassbohrer All Terrain Vehicles Inc for $6.125 million As of December 22 2011 after giving effect to an unscheduled principal payment of $1.5 million

on December 92011 the outstanding balance under the credit
facility was approximately $21.4 million On December 282011 the Company closed the

sale of its corporate headquarters Following the application of the net cash proceeds of $6.125 million fromthe sale of the corporate headquarters the

outstanding balance and interest rate under the credit facility as of December 28 2011 were approximately $16.6 million and 9.79% respectively The

Company expects that it will be required to make additional payments of $8.5 million in the twelve-manth period ending June 30 2012 inclusive of

approximately $7.7 million already paid through the date of this filing to remain compliant with the covenants of its credit facility If all of the

covenants and payments have been met the maturity date of the credit
facility

will be extended to June 30 2013 If that occurs the Company will be

required to pay approximately $15.4 million fromthe one-year period beginning July 2012 through June 30 2013 including an aggregate payment

of approximately $12.2 million at June 30 2013 representing the remaining balance due at maturity assuming payments made in accordance with the

payment schedule set forth in the amended and restated loan agreement
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Historically the Company has financed its operations primarily thmugh cash from operations and debt financing activities However the Company has

sufiºrcd reoccurring losses fromoperations since the quarter ended April30 2008 and has been in and out ofcompliance with its loan agreement Note

Unless the Company is able to generate increased cash from existing operations and/or raise additional capital management does not believe that the

Company will have sufficient cash to meet the Companys anticipated cash needs for the next 12 months Management is cuimntly exploring what if

any strategic altematives are available to the Company in order to meet its operating and capital needs for the next 12 months including business

conthinations strategic partnerships and the sale of Company assets If the Company is unsuccessiuil in these efforts the Company will not be able to

satis its debt obligations invest in the resources necessary to obtain regulatory appwvals in new markets continue the development and

deployment of current and new pmducts and/or respond to competitive market pressures and requirements Our failure to generate additional cash

thmugh operations and strategic alternatives would adversely affect our business and ultimately lead to the financinl and operating failure of the

Company

For additional information related to our bormwings under our Credit Facility see Note and Note 17 to the Audited Consolidated Financial

Statements
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Contractual Obligations

The following table presents information on contractual obligations held as of October 31 2011 as adjusted for subsequent events

Payments Due by Period

in thousands

Total 2012 2013 to2014 2015 to2016 2017 andthereafter

Debt obligations

Term loan 23329 8685 14644

Estimated interest payments 3296 2500 796

Operating lease obligations 930 540 388

Purchase contract obligations 2980 2886 94

consulting and separation agreements 565 182 226 157 78 per year

Other liabilities 27 27

Tax liabilities 1288 1288

Total 32415 16108 16148 159

Amounts represent the expected principal payments relating to our Term Loan as of October 30 2011 which includes the loan extension to

June 302013 Should the extension not occur $23.3 million would be due in 2012 For further detail see discussion at Note Borrowings

and related agreements to our Consolidated Financial Statements contained herein

Amount represents the expected interest payments relating to our debt obligations at current effective interest rates which includes interest

payments inclusive of the extension of the Term Loan through June 302013 Should the Term I.oan extension not occur estimated Term than

interest payments would be $2.5 million in 2012 and no interest payments for the Term than in 2013 reducing estimated total interest

payments to $242 thousand in 2013 We have an outstanding interest rate swap agreement that effectively exehanges fixed interest payments

for variable rate payments associated with our Term Loan and the impact of this interest rate swap was factored into the calculation of the

estimated interest payments In addition the total includes closing and acquisition costs of $582 thousand to be paid in December 2011 plus

$154 thousand due June 302012 if the term if the Credit Facility is extended through June 2013

Consists of future payments due on non-cancelable leases for property and equipment

Consists of future payments on non-cancelable contracts to license intellectual property and open purchase orders at October 302011

Amount represents future payments under our Consulting Separation and Non-compete Agreement with Richard Fedor in connection with

his resignation as Executive Chainmn of the Company and as member of the Board of Directors We are obligated to pay Mr Fedor

separation fee and medical benefits after the initial three-year consulting period expires in consideration for his continued compliance with

certain restrictive covenants Due to the difficulty of estimating the total amount we have included payments on 2017 and thereafter as

memorandum entry only these are not included in the total See our form 8-K filed on November 182010 for details regarding the Consulting

Separation and Non-compete Agreement

Amount represents future payments on note payable

Amount represents proposed IRS adjustments to the depreciable life used in calculating federal tax depreciation on the leased electronic bingo

systems See Note 11 Income Taxes to our Consolidated Financial Statements contained herein
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Purchase Commitments

From time to time we enter into commitments with our vendors to purchase VLT parts bingo terminals and support equipment at fixed prices and/or

guaranteed quantities Various other additional purchase commitments were nude in the ordinary course of business throughout fiscal 2011 of which

$2.8 million was outstanding as ofOctober 30 2011

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

None

Item 7A Quantitatiw and Qualitatiw Disclosures About Market Risk

Not Required

Item Financial Statements and Sulementary Data

The consolidated financial statements and supplementary data are as follows

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 23

Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Balance Sheets 24

Consolidated Statements of Operations 25

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity 26

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 27

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 28
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Board of Directors

GimeTech International Inc

Reno Nevada

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of climeTech International Inc and subsidiaries collectively the Company as of

October 302011 and October31 2010 and the related consolidated statements of operations stockholders equity and cash flows for the years then

ended These financial statements are the responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial

statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those standards

require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement

The Company is not required to have nor were we engaged to perforn an audit of its internal control over financial reporting Our audits included

consideration of internal control over financial reporting as basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for

the purpose ofexpressing an opinion on the effectiveness ofthe Companys internalcontmloverfinancialreporting Accordingly we express no such

opinion An audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also

includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement

presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the financial position of the Company as of October 30

2011 and October 31 2010 and the results of its operations and cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States

The subject financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as going concern As discussed in Notes and to

the consolidated financial statements all of the Companys debt approximately $23.4 million at October 30 2011 is classified as current There is

significant uncertainty as to whether the Company will be able to satisfy all conditions necessary to extend the maturity of such obligations raising

substantial doubt about the Companys ability
to continue as going concern Managements plans regarding this matter is also discussed in Note

The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome ofthis uncertainty Despite the foregoing we have neither

determined nor opined as to whether the Company is solvent or insolvent for any purpose

IS/ PIFRCY BOWLER TAYLOR KERN

Certified Public Accountants

Ias Vegas Nevada

February 2012
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CAMEFECH INTFRNATIONAL INC

CONSOLIDATFD BALANCE SHEEIS

In thousands except share and per share amounts

October 30 October 31

2011 2010

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and equivalents 1357 2017

Restncted cash 177 3789

Accounts receivable net of allowances of $1478 and $3063 2946 3409

Income taxes receivable 362 2963

Inventories 2188 4285

Prepaid expenses and other 881 1020

7911 17483

Assets held for sale 5833 7718

Deposits 900

Bingo equipment thmiture and other equipment net 7094 8379

kodwill 10184 10184

Other intangibles less accumulated amortization of $9985 and $10873 1683 2996

Debt acquisition costs less accumulted amortization 328

33933 46760

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Current liabilities

Notes payable 23355 27554

Interest rate swap 665 1185

Accounts payable 1856 1659

Accmed payroll and related 988 1040

Income taxes payable 1298 1268

Deferred revenue 649 2891

Other accmed liabilities 1655 1640

30466 37237

Stockholders equity

Common stock $0.OOl par value 40000000shaies authorized 14480537 shares issued 11874634 and

11806693 shares outstanding 14 14

Additionalpaidin capital 52153 52154

Deficit 36683 30315

Treasury stock at cost 2605903 and 2673844 shares 12017 12330

3467 9523

33933 46760

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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GAMHINTERNATIONAI4 INC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

In thousands except per share amounts

52-wek periods ended

October 30 October 31

2011 2010

Net revenues 30867 35171

Cost ofrevenues exeluding depreciation amortization 11059 11131

Depreciation and amortization 3854 5046

14913 16177

Gross profit 15954 18994

Operating expenses

General and administrative 7227 10906

Sales and marketing 6293 9627

Research and development 3685 5958

Depreciation and amortization 1527 1400

Impairment loss assets held for sale 1885 2870

Summit Amusement settlement 1370

Gain on sale of bingo equipment 633

20617 28758

Loss flm operations 4663 9764

Other income expense

Interest expense 2020 2111

Impairment ofinvestments 175
Gain on sale of investments 944

Other net 289 143

Loss before income taxes 6394 10963

Income taxes benefit 26 9393

Net loss 6368 20356

Basic and diluted net loss per share 0.54 1.73

Weighted shares used in calculating basic and diluted net loss per share 11837 11772

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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GAMEFECH INTERNATIONAL INC

CONSOLIDATFD STATFNFNTS OF STOCKHOLDFRS IXIJITY

In thousands exce share amouffis

AItional

____________________
Paid in Treasury Stock

_________ __________ Capital Deficit Shares Amount Total

52154 30315 2673844 12330 9523

22 22
313 67941 313

334 334

6368 6368

14480537 14 52153 36683 2605903 12017 3467

14480537 14 51942 9959 2744672 12657 29340

68 68
327 70828 327

607 607

20356 20356

14480537 14 52154 30315 2673844 12330 9523

See notes to consolidated financial statements

Common Stock

Shares Amount

14480537 14Balances at November 2010

ForfŁitui of restricted stock

Restricted stock issued

Stock based compensation

Net loss

Balances at October 30 2011

Balances at November 12009

Foifeiture ofrestricted stock

Restricted stock issued

Stock based compensation

Net loss

Balances at October 31 2010
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GAMELECH INTERNATIONAL INC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

In thousands

52 Weeks 52 Weeks

Fnded Ended

October30 October31

2011 2010

Operating actiities

Net cash pmvided by operating activities 4792 6380

tnwsting acti4ties

Proceeds from sale of investments 1335

Acquisition ofintangibles 480 1820
Deposits for purehase ofbingo equipment 900
Purchases of bingo equipment furniture and other equipment 2601 3456

Net cash used in investing activities 3981 3941

Financing acthities

Repayment ofbormwings 5264 2457
Increase in restricted cash 2996 3790
Decrease in restricted cash 6608

Proceeds from bomwings 691 2487

Debt modification costs 510

Net cash used in financing activities 1471 3759

Net decrease in cash and equnsdents 660 1320
Cash and equialents beginning of year 2017 3337

Cashandequivalentsendofyear 1357 2017

Reconciliation of net loss to net cash proiided by operating acti%ities

Net loss 6368 20356

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 5381 5704

Impairment of investment 175

Impairment of assets held for sale 1885 2870

Obsolescence and loss on disposal of bingo terminals and related equipment 167 981

Obsolescence of inventory 104 1300

Bad debts recoveries 662 2210

Loss on disposal of furniture and otherequipment 13 16

Stock compensation expense net of tax 313 538

Deferred income taxes 13491

Ainoitization of debt acquisition costs 182 174

Interest rate swap 520 188
lnterst addition to principal 373

Gain on the sale of investment 944
Gain on the sale of as sets 633
Accounts receivable net 1030 2120

Income taxreceivable 2601 2963
Inventories 2296 1235

Prepaid expenses and other cunent assets 162 442

Income taxes payable 30 186

Accounts payable 616 861

Accrued payroll and related 52 177
Defened revenues 2242 591
Otheraccmed liabilities 15 71

4792 6380

Other supplemental cash flowinformation

Cash paid for



Interest 2413 1683

Income tas 56 212

Non-cash investing and financing activities

Acquisition ofassets included in accounts payable
419 34

Sale of equipment and licenses with note receivable 663

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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GAMFIECH INTERNATIONAL INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATFMFNLS

October 302011 and October 312010

Nature of business

Organization and business lameTech International Inc ifwas incorporated in Delaware on April 18 1994 JTI and its subsidiaries collectively

the Company operates two business segments the design development and marketing of interactive electronic bingo systems consisting of

poitable and fixed-based systems and wireless server-based gaming technologies collectively referred to as our Bingo business or segment and

the design development manufacturing licensing and marketing of video lottery terminals slot machine equipment and related software collectively

refemed to as VLT business or segment As of October 302011 the Company had bingo systems in service in 38 states various Native American

locations and two foreign countries We had VLT terminals placed and in service in seven states

Lack of liquidity and managements plans Historically the Company has financed its operations primarily through cash from operations and debt

financing activities However the Company has suffered reoccurnng losses from operations since the quarter ended April 30 2008 and has been in

and out of compliance with its loan agreement Note

Unless the Company is able to generate increased cash from existing operations and/or raise additional capital management does not believe that the

Company will have sufficient cash to meet the Companys anticipated cash needs for the next 12 months Management is currently exploring what if

any strategic alternatives are available to the Company in order to meet its operating and capital needs for the next 12 months including business

coithinations strategic partnerships and the sale of Company assets If the Company is unsuccessful in these efforts the Company will not be able to

satisf its debt obligations invest in the resources necessary to obtain regulatory approvals in new markets continue the development and

deployment of current and new products and/or respond to competitive market pressures and requirements Our failure to generate additional cash

through operations and strategic alternatives would adversely afIŁct our business and ultimately lead to the financial and operating fitilure of the

Company

Credit risk concentrations Financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to concentration of credit risk consist primarily of cash and

equivalents investments and accounts receivable Cash and equivalents are in excess of Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance limits

One customer accounts for $3.6 million or 11 .9% and $2.3 million or 6.5% of the Companys revenue for fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2010 respectively and

57.0% and 44.8% for the VLT segment

The Company conducts substantial amount of its business through distributor relationships many of which act as collection agent As of October

30 2011 and October 31 201045.4% and 44.6% of the consolidated accounts receivable balances before allowances relates to one distributor
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Geographical concentration significant portion of the Companys revenue is concentrated in the Texas Montana Mississippi and Louisiana

markets as follows

52 Weeks 52 Weeks

Ended Ended

10/30/2011 10/31/2010

Total revenues

Texas l.7% 14.8%

Montana 15.6% 7.5%

Mississippi 8.7% 7.7%

Louisiana 6.6% 9.8%

Bingo segment

Texas l5.O% 17.4%

Mississippi 11.2% 9.1%

Louisiana 4.1% 3.9%

VLT segment

Montana 71.3% 51.0%

Louisiana 15.6% 44.8%

Dividend Policy

During 2011 and 2010 the Company did not declare or pay any dividends Any payment of dividends in the future will depend upon among other

factors our earnings financial condition capital requirements level of indebtedness contractual restrictions with respect to the payment of dividends

and other considerations that our Board of Directors deems relevant Under our current credit facility prior lender approval is required to pay any cash

dividends The Company does not expect to issue dividends in the foreseeable future

Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of presentation and accounting Our consolidated financial statements include the accounts of UT and its subsidiaries for the periods

presented AU subsidiaries are directly or indirectly wholly-owned subsidiaries by llI All significant inter-company accounts and transactions have

been eliminated in consolidation The Company measures all of its assets and liabilities on the historical cost basis of accounting except as required

under generally accepted accounting principles UAAP and disclosed herein The Company reports on 52/53 week fiscal year Fiscal years ended

October 302011 and October 312010 both included 52 weeks

Use of estimates The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that

affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes Allowance for doubtful accounts estimated fair value of

investments obsolescence of VLT inventoiy and Bingo equipment estimated thir value of assets held for sale impairment of goodwill and other

intangibles and long-lived assets loss contingencies amorti2ation of debt acquisition costs provision for income taxes and stock-based

compensation are significant estimates made by management which could vaiy materially within the next year The aggregate effect of year-end

adjustments material to the fourth quarter of 2011 was charge to operations of approximately $300000 with no tax effect unaudited

Cash equivalents and restricted cash The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less at the

date ofpurchase to be cash equivalents Restricted cash consists of amounts restricted by our credit facility

Accounts receivable and allowance for doubtful accounts Management estimates possible losses resulting from not collecting the outstanding

accounts receivable including amounts due from lessees and purchasers of the Companys equipment and certain distributors that bill and collect on

the Companys behalf in certain jurisdictions The Company performs initial and ongoing evaluations of the credit worthiness of its customers and

distributors Credit tenns are predominantly 30 days In certain limited circumstances credit terms may be extended up to 160 days without

interest An allowance for doubtful collection is established based on historical collection metrics adjusted for the length oftime the receivable has

been outstanding and individually material balances if any which are considered on case-by-ease basis The timing of write-offs is also determined

on case-by-ease basis Generally accounts receivable that are 60 days past due are considered delinquent In the event these receivables become

uncollectible the maximum losses to be sustained would be the face amount of the receivables less any allowances provided and the value of any

equipment collateral
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Inventories Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market The cost ofpaits and materials and work in process is determined using the first-in

first-out method The average cost method is used for finished goods Equipment models that have not been released for placement and VLT

equipment that is available for sale are included in finished goods Inventories consist of the following at October 30 2011 and October 31 2010 in

thousands

2011 2010

Parts and raw materials 1157 1015

Finished goods 1031 3270

2188 4285

Bingo equipmentfurniture and otherproperty Bingo equipment includes portable and fixed-based player terminals file servers caller units point-of-

sale units and other support equipment and component parts The Company records bingo equipment furniture and other equipment at cost and

depreciates these overthe estimated useflil lives of the assets using the straight-line method The estimated useful lives are as follows

Bingo equipment 3-5 years

Office furniture and equipment 3-7 years

Leasehold improvements Remaining life of lease

Building 39 V2 years

Annually the Company tests its long-lived assets for possible impairment and provides reserves for effectively accelerates depreciation of excess or

obsolete bingo terminals that are available for placement but not expected to be used which once established are not restored Component parts are

not depreciated until placed in service

Goodwill and other indefinite lift intangibles The Company measures and tests goodwill and other indefinite life intangibles for impairment at least

annually or more often when financial circumstances change or are expected to change materially such that the canying value may be greater than the

estimated fair value

An impairment evaluation of goodwill and other indefinite life intangibles require the use of estimates about future operating results of the subject

reporting unit and capitalization and discount rates and other valuation metrics used by market participants The choice of which approach to use in

particular situation depends on the specific facts and circumstances at the time and may vary from one period to the next

Other intangibles Other intangibles include software products copyrights/trademarks licenses customer relationships and patent

applications Software products developed including significant enhancements to existing products are stated at cost We capitalize costs related to

the development of certain software products that are to be used as integral parts of product or process to be sold or leased after technological

feasibility ofthe software has been established and all research and development activities for the other components or processes are complete We
consider new product to be technologically feasible once it has been submitted to the testing laboratory of state agency We cease capitalizing

costs when the product is available for general release to our customers Such costs are amortized over the estimated economic life of the product

typically to 10 years using the straight-line method beginning when the product becomes available for general release

Interest rate swap derivative The Company has entered into an interest rate swap agreement to hedge its interest rate exposure on its Credit Facility

described in Note In this agreement the Company agrees to pay the counterparty fixed rate payment in exchange for the counterparty agreeing to

pay the Company variable rate payment that is intended to approximate the Companys variable rate payment obligation on the Credit Facility The

payment obligation is based on the notional amount of the swap Depending on the state of interest rates in general the use of interest rate swaps

could enhance or harm the overall performance ofthe common shares The market value of interest rate swaps is based on pricing models that consider

the time value of money volatility and the current market and contractual prices of the underlying financial instniment Unrealized gains are reported

as an asset and unrealized losses are reported as liability on the Companys Consolidated Balance Sheet The change in value of interest rate swaps

including the accnial ofpeiiodic amounts of interest to be paid or received on swaps is reported as interest expense in the Companys Consolidated

Statements ofOperations Swap agreements involve to varying degrees elements of market and counterparty risk and exposures to loss in the related

amounts are reflected in the Companys Balance Sheet
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The Company does not enter into denvative transactions for speculative purposes

Revenue recognition We recognize revenue when the following criteria are met

Persuasive evidence of an arrangement between us and our customer exists

deliveiy has occurred bingo terminals are available or ready for play or services have been rendered

the price is fixed or determinable and

collectabiity is reasonably assured

The Company earns revenue in variety ofways offering products for lease or sale as well as service and software updates for equipment previously

sold or leased Our bingo terminals bingo systen and certain other tangthle products containing both software and hardware components that

function together to deliver the products functionality are generally recognized upon deliveiy and customer acceptance and not as separate

deliverables

Revenue amounts collected 11Dm customers have been recorded on net basis That is sales tax is not recorded as revenue but rather as liability

payable to the appropriate governmental agency and included in accrued expenses Shipping and handling charges to customers are recorded in net

revenues with the corresponding expense recorded in cost of revenues

Bingo Equipment high percentage of our bingo revenue is contingent upon usage or results Bingo terminals and bingo systems are placed in

bingo halls undercontracts based on fixed fee per use per session contingent fee based on percentage ofthe revenue generated by each

tenninal or fixed weekly fee per terminal All of these arrangements are accounted for as operating leases The initial term of the agreements

typically range from Ito years some with automatic one-year renewals until affirmatively cancelled The Company is generally responsible for the

maintenance of its equipment including possible replacement during the temi of the contract

VLTEquipment Revenues and costs related to contracted production are recognized as the related work is delivered The Company recognizes license

fee revenues over the temi of the associated agreement unless the fee is in exchange for products delivered or services performed that represent the

culmination of separate earnings process All revenue and associated costs will be deferred if the earnings process is not complete and the revenue

recognition criteria are not met Deferred revenue as of the balance sheet dates presented consists piiniirily of amounts received for future

deliverables

Advertising costs Advertising costs are expensed as incurred For the 52-week periods ended October 30 2011 and October 312010 expenses of$l 12

thousand and $596 thousand were incurred

Litigation costs The Company does not accrue for future
litigation costs if any to be incurred in connection with outstanding litigation and other

disputed matters but rather records such costs when the legal and other services are rendered

Stock-based compensation The Company accounts for its share-based compensation using the modified simplified method The fair value of

employee stock-based compensation is estimated at the date ofgrant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model which is affected by the following

assumptions regarding complexand subjective variables

Expected dividend yield The expected dividend yield assumption is zero because the Company has history of not paying dividends and is

restricted frompaying dividends under its current Credit Facility without bank approval Note
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Expected tenn This is the penod of time the options are expected to be outstanding and is determined by the simplified method which states

The midpoint of the average vesting period and contractual life is an acceptable expected life assumption The use of this method in lieu of

historical exereise data and changes in the term of the share option grants which has been insufficient is evaluated annually for continued

relevance

Expected -volatility The volatility assumption is based on the historic volatility ofthe Companys stock using weekly price data over the most

recent two-year period

Forfriture rate This is based primarily on the Companys historical experience related to expected vesting option exercises and employee

terminations The Company uses zem forfeiture rate because historically forfeitures have not been significant

Risk-free interest rate The iisk-free interest rate assumption is based on United States Treasury Note rates in effect at the time of the grant fora

period that approximates the expected temi

The following were used to estimate the fair value of options for the fiscal years

2011 2010

Risk-free interest rate 1.88% 1.62%

Dividend yield 0.00% 0.00%

Volatility
factor 82.60% 77.23%

Expected life in years 10.0 9.3

Income taxes Note 11 The Company records estimated penalties and interest related to income tax matters including uncertain tax positions as

component of income taxexpense

Net income loss per share For all periods basic net income loss applicable to connmn shareholders per share EPS is calculated by dividing net

income loss by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding Diluted EPS in profitable years reflects the effects of potentially

dilutive common shares by dividing net income by the sum of the weighted average number of common shares and common-share equivalents

outstanding during the year

Financial instruments and fair value measures

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer liability exit price in the principal or most advantageous

market in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date Fair value estimates are prepared using observable and

unobservable inputs classilied as follows

Level Quoted market prices in active markets for identical instruments

Level 2- Observable inputs other than quoted prices inactive markets for identical assets and liabilities quoted prices for identical or similar

assets or liabilities in inactive markets or other inputs that are observable or can be conuborated by observable market data for substantially

the full term of the assets or liabilities

Level 3- Inputs that are generally unobservable and typically reflect managements estimates of assumptions that market participants would

use in pricing the asset or liability

For the Companys cash and equivalents restricted cash accounts receivable accounts payable and debt the carrying amounts approximate fair

value because ofthe short duration ofthese financial instruments
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The Companys investments in Auction Rate Secunties ARS which represent interests in collateralized debt obligations supported by pools of

residential and commercial mortgages credit cards insurance securitizations and other structured credits including corporate bonds are measured at

estimated fair value on recumng basis using discounted cash flow approach to value and unobservable Level inputs that reflect managements

estimates about the assumptions that market participants would use in pncing the asset including the timing of estimated cash flows and other

valuation metrics list of the most significant fuctors affecting the estimated cash flows and discount rates used in the Companys valuation made

include credit ratings ofthe ARS and collateral securities default rates other market and liquidity circumstances

Derivative assets and liabilities such as the Companys interest rate swap agreement and debt are valued using quoted forward pricing from bank

counterparties and LIBOR credit default swap rates for non-performance risk Level inputs and approximate the net settlement amount if the

contracts were settled at the reporting date These are presented as notes payable and interest rate swap

Assets held for sale consisting of real estate are also measured at estimated fair values Note and is no longer subject to depreciation

Instments

The par and estimated fair value of the Companys ARS was $1.3 miffion and zero as of October 30 2011 and October 31 2010 Unrealized losses

related to the ARS for fiscal 2010 totaled $175 thousand There were no unrealized losses related to the ARS for fiscal 2011 On October 2011 the

Company entered into settlement agreement whereby in exchange for payment of $500 thousand the Company agreed to resolve discharge and

settle all claims that were or could have been brought by the Company against Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc

Assets held for sale

During fiscal 2010 the Company listed the real property housing the Company headquarters and warehouse space in Reno Nevada for

sale Accordingly the real estate was reclassified as held for sale and written down to its then estimated fair value which originally resulted in an

impairment loss of $2.9 million Depreciation against the building ceased Estimated fair value was based primarily on listing
information Level

inputs During the year ended October 30 2011 additional impairment losses of $1.9 million were recorded On December 28 2011 the sale of the

property was completed for $6.125 million Note 17

Bingo equipinent furniture and other property

Bingo equipment furniture and other property consists ofthe following as of October 30 2011 and October31 2010 in thousands

2011 2010

Bingo equipment 50298 50533

Office furniture and equipment 4990 4965

Leasehold inrovements 120 120

55408 55618

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 51544 49544

Less reserve forexcess orobsolete terminals 408 272

3456 5802

Add bingo component parts 3638 2577

7094 8379

Long-lhed assets goodwill and other intangibles

The Company reviews long-lived assets consisting of bingo equipment furniture other equipment and finite life intangibles whenever events or

changes in circumstances indicate that the canying amount of an asset may not be recoverable Similarly when circumstances indicate that goodwill

associated with the Companys bingo business and/or other indefinite life intangibles might not be recoverable an impairment analysis is also

performed Recoverability of long-lived assets and finite life intangibles are measured by comparison ofthe carrying amount of an asset to estimated

future undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by the asset If such assets are considered impaired the impairment is measured by the

amount by which the canying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value ofthe assets The Company perfomis its annual impairment analysis in the

third quarter of evely year and perfomd its 2011 annual impaimnt testing ofgoodwill and other intangibles as ofjuly 31 2011 For 2011 and 2010

management determined that no additional impairment of any ofthese assets was necessary
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The cost accumulated amortization and net cariying value of intangible assets in thousands and related remaining economic lives consist ofthe

following as of October 30 2011

Weighted

Average

Amortization

Accumulated Net Period

Cost Amortization Carrying Value in years

Intellectual property software 2202 1340 862 2.5

Copyiights/tmdemais 246 107 139 7.8

Licenses 1500 1500
Summit Gaming identifiable intangible assets

Customer relationships 3600 3300 300 0.4

Patent applications 620 238 382 7.3

Game software library 3500 3500

11668 9985 1683

The cost accumulated amortization and net carrying value of intangible assets in thousands and related renstining economic lives consist ofthe

following as of October 31 2010

Weighted

Average

Amortization

Accumulated Net Period

Cost Amortization Carrying Value in years

Intellectual property software 4142 3582 560 2.1

Copyrights/tradematlcs 247 90 157 9.1

Licenses 1500 675 825 0.2

Summit Gaming identifiable intangible assets

Customer relationships 3600 2580 1020 1.7

Patent applications 620 186 434 6.7

Game software library 3500 3500

13609 10613 2996
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Estimated future annual amortization expense for intangible assets is as follows in thousands

2012 659

2013 323

2014 323

2015 136

2016 70

After2Ol6 172

1683

Borrowings and related agreements

Notes payable classified as cument under boffowing agreements as ofthe balance sheet dates presented include the following in thousands

2011 2010

Credit Facility

Term loan 23329 25466

Revolver 750

Line ofcredit 1276

Othernotes payable 26 62

23355 27554

We entered into $40.0 million credit facility with U.S Bank N.A and Bank of the West on August 22 2008 that provided for senior secured

revolving credit facility of $2.0 million and senior secured termloan of $38.0 million The credit ficility was originally established in order to purchase

corporate headquarters building in southeast Reno Nevada and to finance improvements to address office space manufacturing and assembly

needs In connection with the term loan agreement the Company also entered into an interest rate swap agreement with U.S Bank which

exehanged the variable one-month LIBOR rate of the term loan for fixed LIBOR rate of 3.99% per annum through the maturity of the loan In

consideration for their ently into the credit facility the Company granted its lenders first priority security interest in all of the Companys assets

including first deed oftrust on the corporate headquarters and future cash flows

During fiscal 2010 the Company fell out of compliance with its financial covenants contained in the loan agreement and failed to make scheduled

payments ofprincipal and interest in accordance with the terms of the loan agreement Throughout fiscal 2010 the Company and the lenders entered

into various forbearances and amendments to the loan agreement wherein the lenders conditionally waived their remedies under the loan agreement

and imposed certain new terms These tenns included among others reduction of the total commitment on the revolver from $2 million to $750

thousand establishment of Bank ofthe West line ofcredit or letters of credit up to $1.8 million in the aggregate secured by funds on deposit in the

control account increase of the interest rate on all outstanding balances under the revolver and term loan to the defitult rate of 3% above the existing

rates requirement that the Company retain consultant that is acceptable to the Company and the lenders prohibition on the Companys acquisition

of any other business or substantially all the assets of any other business termination ofthe forbearance on the resignation or termination of the Chief

Executive Officer or the consultant deferral of accrued interest limitation on capital expenditures limitation of the amount of cash disbursements for

investments in the Illinois VLT market and requirement of bi-weekly report from the ChiefExecutive Officer and consultant to the lenders

As result of the Companys continued non-compliance with the terms ofthe loan agreement and ently into subsequent forbearance agreements with

the lenders the Company classified the total balance outstanding under the credit facility and the interest rate swap premium liability to current

liabilities as of May 22010
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On June 15 2011 the Company entered into an amended and restated loan agreement with its lenders to extend the maturity of the facility to June 30

2012 Provided the Company remains in compliance with the tenm of the new loan agreement as of June 30 2012 the termof the facility would extend

from June 30 2012 to June 30 2013 The amended and restated loan agreement does not impose any obligation on the part of our lenders to provide

additional financing to the Conqany at which time no amounts remained outstanding under the revolver portion of the credit facility Substantially all

ofthe assets of the Company including its corporate headquarters continue to collateralize the Companys borrowings

As result of its ently into the amended and restated loan agreement the Company reclassified portion of the outstanding principal balance under its

credit facility to long-term as of May 12011 in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification ASp 470-10-45

The amended and restated loan agreement amends and restates the terms for repayment by the Company of the outstanding balances under the

facility Under the terms ofthe amended and restated loan agreement the Company is required to make monthly payments of principal in the amount of

$200 thousand from August 2011 through June 2012 and if extended principal payments of $300 thousand from November 2012 until the facility

matures on June 302013 The remaining unpaid principal balance together with any accrued but unpaid interest is due at maturity

The amended and restated loan agreement provides that all outstanding balances under the facility bear interest at base rate which is equal to an

applicable margin plus the daily Eurocurrency rate or an alternative base rate as provided for in the agreement The initial applicable margin was

5.80% increased to 7.50% on February 2012 through April 2012 and will increase fl.irther to 8.50% May 2012 through October 2012 and 9.50%

November 2012 through June 30 2013 Upon an event of default the interest rate under the
facility

will increase by 3% In addition to the applicable

margin daily Eurocurrency base rate is applied which is the one month UBOR rate The LIBOR rate at October 302011 was 0.24% The Companys

interest rate swap agreement continues to remain effective following the Companys entry into the amended and restated loan agreement As of

October 302011 the outstanding principal balance and applicable interest rate under the credit
facility were $23.3 million and 9.84% respectively

The amended and restated loan agreement requires the Company to apply 75% of its excess cash flow as defined in the agreement as of the end of

each fiscal quarter beginning with the quarter ending July 31 2011 towards the satisfaction of its obligations under the facility Additionally the

Company is required to apply lOO% of the proceeds from certain transactions and other sources to the prepayment of its obligations under the facility

including the net cash pinceeds fromany sale ofassets otherthan sales of inventory in the ordinary course ofbusiness financings excess insurance

proceeds finm casualty events condemnation awards the receipt of specific assets and other events as specified in the agreement In addition the

amended and restated loan agreement prohibits capital expenditures for any use other than purchases of equipment for leasing to customers in the

ordinary course ofbusiness and limits the amount of capital expenditures that may be made by the Company for fiscal years 2011 and 2012

The amended and restated loan agreement requires the Company to comply with various financial and non-financial covenants and includes customary

events of default The financial covenants include requirements that the Company maintain minimum liquidity quarterly profitability as defined in the

agreement quarterly consolidated EBITDA and cash flow leverage and fixed charge coverage ratios which are measured monthly beginning October

31 2011

The non-financial covenants include restrictions on asset divestitures liens transactions with related parties limitations on additional indebtedness

mergers acquisitions and consolidations cash dividends issuance and redemptions of stock investments sale leaseback transactions operations

outside of the submitted strategic plan change of control as well as requirement to continue to retain consultant that is acceptable to both the

lenders and the Company
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In consideration for the lenders ently into the new Joan agreement the Company was required to pay closing fee in the amount of $736 thousand

fifty percent of which was due at closing The remaining half was paid in December 2011 The amended and restated loan agreement also required

payment of $1.0 million at closing which was first applied to the portion of the closing fee due at closing and second to the outstanding principal

balance of the term loan In accordance with the terms of the amended and restated loan agreement $J .0 million of the remaining $2.8 million relating to

certain taxtefunds received by the Company and held by U.S Bank in control account was applied to the payment due at closing with the remaining

$1.8 million released to the Company for certain permitted capital expenditures

As of September 2011 the Company detemiined that it was not in compliance with certain covenants contained in the amended and restated loan

agreement On December 22 2011 the Company and the lenders entered into first amendment to the amended and restated loan agreement and

waiver ofdefaults The first amendment among other things modifies certain financial covenants ii incorporates the lenders consent to the sale

of the Companys corporate headquarters which occurred on December 28 2011 iii requires the Company to maintain at least $350 thousand in

liquidity through January 312012 and at least $500 thousand in liquidity at all times thereafter and iv waives any and all prior events of default

Under the tenns of the first amendment the net cash proceeds of $6.l25 million fromthe sale of the corporate headquarters were applied to pay an

amendment fee equal to $214 thOusand representing one percent l.00% of the outstanding balance of the credit facility as of December 22 2011 ii

all fees and interest due and payable as of the sale date including all current interest all deferred interest accruing fromJune 152011 through the sale

date and the remaining portion of the closing fee $368 thousand related to the Companys entry into the amended and restated loan agreement and

iii the outstanding principal balance under the credit facility

The first amendment also modifies certain covenants contained in the amended and restated loan agreement and requires the Company to apply

75% of its excess cash flow as of the end of each fiscal quarter towards the satisfaction of its obligations under the credit facility ii to the extent

liquidity exceeds $1.5 million at any time requires the Company to apply such excess towards the satisfaction of its obligations under the credit fitciity

and iii prohibits capital expenditures for any use other than purchases of equipment for leasing to customers in the ordinary course of business and

further limits the amount of capital expenditures that may be made by the Company

As of December 22 2011 after giving effect to an unscheduled principal payment of $1.5 million on December 92011 the outstanding balance under

the credit facility was approximately $21.4 million Following the application of the net cash proceeds of $6.125 million from the sale of the corporate

headquarters the outstanding balance and interest rate under the credit facility as of December 28 2011 were approximately $16.6 million and 9.79%

respectively The Company expects that it will be required to make additional payments of $8.5 million in the twelve-month period ending June 30 2012

inclusive of approximately $7.7 million already paid from June 30 2012 through the date of this filing to remain compliant with the covenants of its

credit facility If all of the covenants and payments have been met at June 30 2012 the maturity date ofthe credit facility will be extended to June 30

2013 lfthat occurs the Company will be required to pay approximately $15.4 million from the one-year period beginning July 2012 through June 30

2013 including an aggregate payment of approximately $12.2 million at June 30 2013 representing the remaining balance due at maturity assuming

payments made in accordance with the payment schedule set forth in the amended and restated loan agreement

Commitments and contingencies

Leases The Company leases administrative and warehouse facilities and certain equipment Rent expense during 2011 and 2010 was $251 thousand

and $305 thousand

Future minimum lease payments and applicable fiscal years areas follows in thousands

2012 540

2013 363

2014 25

2015

Minimum future rentals due finm the Companys customers on non-cancelable bingo equipment operating leases and applicable fiscal years are as

follows in thousands
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2012 451

2013 21

2014

Purchase commitments From time to time we enter into commitments with our vendors to purchase VLT parts bingo terminals and supp

equipment at fixed prices and/or guaranteed quantities Various other additional purchase commitments were made in the ordinary course ofbusin

throughout fiscal 2011 of which $2.9 million was outstanding as of October 302011

Litigation The Company is involved in various other legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course ofour business While management is gei
unable to estimate range ofpotential loss if any associated with these matters management does not believe based in part on the advice of co
that any of such proceedings will have material adverse effect on the Companys business results of operations or financial condition and them

minimal provision for loss has been recorded

Employee separation agreements In November 2010 the Company entered into Consulting Separation and Non-compete agreement with

Fedor in connection with his resignation as Executive Chairman of the Company and as member of the Board of Directors Pursuant

agreement the Company will compensate Mr Fedor $120000 per year and provide specified medical benefits for three-year consulting period

consideration for his consulting services and his compliance with certain restrictive covenants in the agreement Following the initial three-year pen

the Company will pay Mr Fedor $60000 per year and provide specified medical benefits in consideration for his continued compliance with the

compete and non-solicitation provisions as well as certain restrictive covenants in the agreement

10 Stockholders equity

Stock-based compensation The Company generally grants stock options to its employees for fixed number of shares with an exercise price equa

the fair value ofthe shares on the date of the grant We also grant restricted stock grants valued at the price equal to the fair value of the shares on

date of grant

Stock Incentive Plan The Company has an incentive stock plan the Plan Under the Plan either incentive stock options ISOs or nonquali

stock options NSOs may be granted to employees directors and consultants to purchase the Companys common stock at an exercise

detennined by the Board of Directors on the date of grant ISOs may be granted only to employees at an exercise price that equals or exceeds the

value ofsuch shares on the date such option is granted The options generally have term often years and vesting periods ofone to four years

determined at the discretion of the Board of Directors In addition restricted stock may be granted to employees who are not officers or directe

consultants and independent contractors The Company reserved 4000000 shares of common stock for issuance under the 1997 Plan as of Decen

92011 no shares of common stock remained available for grant In April2010 the stockholders approved the 2010 Stock Incentive Plan under whk

total of 1100000 shares of common stockwere authorized to be issued In April 2011 the stockholders approved the 2011 Stock Incentive Plan ur

which atotalof 1500000 shares of common stockwere authorized tobe issued

The aggregate intrinsic value represents the difference between the closing price of our common stock on October 30 2011 which was $0.07 and

exercise price multiplied by the number of in-the-money stock options as of the same date This represents the amount that would have been recei

by the stock option holders if they had all exercised their stock options on October 30 2011 In future periods this amount will change depending

fluctuations in our stock price The aggregate intrinsic value of the options outstanding at October 30 2011 and October 31 2010 was zero

aggregate intrinsic value of options exercised under our stock option plans at October 302011 and October31 2010 was zero determined as of the

of option exercise

Stock options activity under both plans for fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2010 follows
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2011 2010

Balance at beginning ofyear

Options

Granted

Forfeited

Expired

Exercised

Restncted shares activity forfiscal20ll and fiscal2Ol0follows

Balance at beginning of year

Options

Granted

Forfeited

Expired

Exercised

Balance at end of year

Exercisable at end of year

Number of

Shares

88001

9418

640

67943

10000

10000

Weighted

Awrage

Exercise Price

3.40

2.69

5.17

2.37

0.84

0.84

Weighted

Awrage

Exercise Price

3.18

Stock-based compensation for fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2010 follows

Pre-tax expense

Tax benefit

After-tax expense

2011 2010

In thousands

313 522

27
312 495

The following table summarizes information regarding stock options outstanding and exercisable as of October 30 2011

Options Outstanding

Weighted

Awrage

Remaining

Range of Number Contractual

Exercise Prices Outstanding Life in years

$0.00 -$0.24 300000 9.67

$0.25 -$1.25 637997 8.90

$l.26-$4.15 488500 6.11

$4.16-$6.10 30000 2.55

$6.11 -$8.05 25000 4.41

$0.00 -$8.05 1481497 7.93

Options Exercisable

Weighted

Awrage

Remaining

Contractual

Life in years

0.39 522997 8.91

2.16 331834 5.27

4.44 30000 2.55

6.54 25000 4.41

1.12 909831 7.25

Weighted

Arage
Exercise Price

0.39

2.47

4.40

6.54

1.45

As of October 30 2011 the total compensation cost related to unvested stock-based awards totaled $88 thousand This cost is expected to be

amortized to expense in fiscal years 2012 2013 and 2014 at $52 thousand $22 thousand and $14 thousand respectively and will be adjusted for

subsequent changes in estimated forfeitures

Stockholder rights agreemenL

Under Rights Agreement the Rights Agreement adopted in 2003 that may have the effect of deterring or preventing change in control that

might otherwise be in the best interest of the Companys stockholders dividend of one preferred share purchase right was issued for each

outstanding share of common stock held by the stockholders of itconi as of the close of business on March 17 2003 Each right entitles the

stockholder to purchase at price of $16.00 one one-thousandth ofa share of Series Junior Participating Preferred Stock

Balance at end of year

Exercisable at end of year

Weighted average grant-date Fair value ofoptions granted during the year

Number of Weighted- Number of Weighted-

hares Awrage Shares Awrage

Options Exercise Price Options Exercise Price

1473947 1.42 1032450 2.32

357500 0.19 947564 0.82

204999 1.15 187500 1.34

144951 1.92 318567 2.62

1481497 1.12 1473947 1.42

909831 1.45 391581 2.98

0.19 0.67

2011 2010

Number

of Shares

177165

18333

70831

88001

88001

1.40

3.38

3.40

3.40

Weighted

Aerage

Exercise Price

0.22

Number

Exercisable
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In general subject to certain limited exceptions the stock purchase nghts become exercisable when person or group acquires 15% or more of the

Companys common stock or tender offer or exchange offer for 15% or more ofthe Companys common stock is announced or commenced After any

such event the Companys other stockholders may purchase additional shares of common stock at 50% of the then-current market price The rights

will cause substantial dilution to person or group that attempts to acquire the Company on teims not approved by the Board of Directors The rights

nny be redeemed by the Company at $0.01 per stock purchase right at any time before any person or group acquires 15% or more of the outstanding

common stock The rights should not interfere with any merger or other business combination approved by the Board of Directors The rights expire on

Mareh 17 2013

On July 16 2009 the Company adopted Amendment No Ito the Rights Agreement which amends the definition of Acquiring Person to increase

from 15% to 26.5% the minimum beneficial ownership interest in the Companys outstanding common stock that would cause our then current

Chainmn ofthe Board as Gnindfathered Person to become an Acquiring Person Thus Amendment No permits our then Chairman of the Board

to acquire up to 26.5% ofour common stock before triggering the dilutive eflect ofthe rights under the rights Agreement No other changes were made

to the Rights Agreement

11 Income taxes

Income tax provision benefit The income tax provision benefit recorded in the consolidated statement of operations for fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2010

consists ofthe following in thousands

2011 2010

27 3971
79

58 206

26 4098

10942

2390

159

13491

26 9393

The following table explains the difference between the Companys effective tax rate and the federal statutory rate of 34% for fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2010

2011 2010

Income tax benefit at the statutoiy rate 34.00% 34.00%

State income taxesnet 0.08% 2.90%

Meals and entertainment 0.23% 0.40%

Non deductible stock compensation 1.20% 1.20%

Non deductible lobbying expenses 0.34% 0.40%

ASC74O-l0lnterestaccnjal 1.01% 0.50%

Change in valuation allowance 31.33% 120.20%

Other net 0.61% 0.10%

Income tax provis ion benefit at its effective rate 0.42% 85.70%

Deft rred tax assets The significant components of the Companys deferred income tax assets there are no deferred tax
liabilities as of October 30

2011 and October 31 2010 are as follows in thousands

Current

Federal

State

Foreign

Deferred

Federal

State

Foreign

Income taxprovision benefit
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Depreciation and amortization of long lived assets

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Reserve for obsolete inventory

Reserve for obsolete terminals

Accmed vacation

Stock compensation expense

Foreign tax credit cariy-forward

Value of credit swap derivative

Fair market value write-down on investments

Loss carry-forwards

Other

467

3851

114 19

2010

Current Non-Current

Valuation allowance

558 14115

558 14115

1813 12552

1813 12552

Net deferred income tax asset -$ -$ ______

Valuation allowances In fiscal 2010 we established 100% valuation allowance against deferred tax assets which were associated with net operating

loss carryforwanis foreign tax credits reserves amortization of intangibles and deferred revenue to reduce them to their estimated net realizable

value Significant management judgment is required in determining deferred tax asset valuation allowance in evaluating the
ability to recover

deferred tax assets we considered available positive and negative evidence giving weight to recent cumulative losses ability to carryback losses

against prior taxable income and to forecasted financial results commensurate with its objective verifiability the forecast of future taxable income

including the reversal oftemporaiy differences and the implementation of feasible and prudent tax planning strategies The valuation allowance will be

maintained until sufficient positive evidence exists to support the reversal ofthe valuation allowance Under current taxlaws this valuation allowance

will not limit our ability to utilize Federal and state deferred taxassets provided we can generate sufficient future taxable income

Net operating losses and related items At October 302011 the Company had net remaining operating loss carryforwards for federal and state income

tax purposes of $9.1 million and $24.2 million The state canyforwards are available to offset future taxable income but if not used they will expire

between 2016 and 2031 The federal canyforwards are available to ofiet future taxable income but if not used they will expire between 2030 and 2031

Unrecognized tax positions The Company files numerous consolidated and separate income tax returns in the United States and in many state and

foreign jurisdictions With few exceptions the Company is no longer subject to United States federal income tax examinations for years before 2006

and is no longer subject to state and local or foreign income tax examinations for years before 2005

The Internal Revenue Service IRS commenced an examination of the Companys U.S income tax returns for the fiscal year ended October 31 2007 in

the first quarter of 2009 that was anticipated to be completed within the following twelve months As of October 302011 the IRS has proposed certain

adjustments to the depreciable life used in calculating federal tax depreciation on the Companys leased electronic bingo systems Management does

not agree with the proposed adjustment and ifthis cannot be resolved at the examination level intends to file protest with IRS Appeals However if

resolution cannot be reached it is reasonably possible that an additional payment of approximately $1.3 million may be made by the end of

2012 Therefore the Company has accrued the $1.3 million as component of income taxcs payable of which $981 thousand is tax and $307 thousand

is interest and penalties

reconciliation ofthe beginning and ending amount of unrecognized taxbenefits for fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2010 is as follows in thousands

2011

Current Non-Current

9336

407

144

121

168

39

235

9849

1144

494

99

137

104 137

98

434

928

1093

66 86
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2011 2010

Balance at beginning ofyear 981 1165

Changes in taxpositions of prior years 184

Balance at end ofyear 981 98

At October 30 2011 no material amount of the unrecogniied tax benefits would affect the annual effective tax rate ifrecognized since they pertain only

to the timing ofrecognition of tax allowable deductions

It is possible that the amount of unrecognized taxbenefit will change within the next 12 months however an estimate of the range of change cannot be

made at this time

12 Warranty

The Conany offers standard service warranty to customers within the VLT division that covers parts software and labor flee of charge for

standard term of 90 days following the installation of sold machine In special circumstances the warranty may be extended up to 180

days Management makes estimates on the accrued
liability

of warranties by calculating the average monthly cost to repair unit under warranty using

average rates from the prior fiscal periods actual costs The estimated potential amount of liability is accrued in the warranty liability and is adjusted

as existing warmnties expire and new machine sales are made

reconciliation ofthe beginning and ending amount of warranty reserves for fiscal 2011 is as follows in thousands

2011

Beginning Balance 59

Warranty Services and Repairs Performed 412
Reduction of Previously Accrued Liability 59
Additional Warmnty Liabilities 600

Ending Balance 188

13 Accrued serance

The Company has incurred expenses connected with severance agreements Changes in the accrued severance liability which is included in accrued

payroll and related consisted ofthe following for fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2010 in thousands

2011 2010

Beginning balance 209

Accrued severance expenses 113 775

Less severance paid 160 566

Ending balance 162 209
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14 Net income doss per common share

reconciliation ofthe shares used in the basic and
fully

diluted earnings per share calculations for fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2010 follows in thousands

2011 2010

Basic weighted average shares outstanding 11837 11772

Effect of dilutive stock options 109 440

Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 11946 12212

Employee stock options to purchase 1123997 shares during fiscal 2011 and 947564 shares during fiscal 2010 were not included in the computation of

diluted earnings per share because the effect would have been anti-dilutive

15 Related Party Transactions

The Company purchases equipment from Ceronix Inc which is controlled by one of our board members Purchases from Ceronix were $80 thousand

and $9 thousand for the 52-week periods ended October 30 2011 and October31 2010 Outstanding payables to Cemnix as of October 30 2011 and

October 31 2010 were $20 thousand and $5 thousand respectively

The Company has engaged Richard Fedor Sr past Chairman of the Board as consultant As of September 14 2011 he was beneficial owner of

approximately 15.0% of the outstanding stock For the 52 week period ended October 30 2011 and October 31 2010 the Company has paid Mr Fedor

$173 thousand and $58 thousand in lees and expenses respectively

On April 13 2011 the Company entered into consulting agreement with Kevin Painter Director of the Company to advise the Company in its

operations and provide guidance and assistance with contract manufacturers and suppliers This contract called for monthly payments of $10

thousand plus expenses For the fiscal year 2011 the Company paid Mr Painter $57 thousand In fiscal year 2010 there were no costs paid to Mr
Painter On May 112011 Mr Painter was appointed Chairman of the Board of Directors On June 212011 the Company elected Mr Painter to serve as

the Companys President and Chief Executive Officer With the acceptance by Mr Painter to serve as the Companys President and Chief Executive

Officer on June 212011 the consulting agreement was terminated Mr Painters employment provides for an annual base salary of$l90000 and he was

granted 300000 stock options at an exercise price of $0.22 per share which vests ratably over three year period contingent on continued employment

with the Company

16 Business segment information

Management has identified two operating segments without regard to geographic location Each operating segment is considered reporting unit

which are described as follows the design development and marketing of interactive electronic bingo systems consisting of portable and fixed-

based systems and the design development manuflicturing and sale of VLT equipment related products and proprietary game content
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The Company evaluates the perfonrance of these segments based on many factors including sales sales trends margins and operating performance

The Company allocates certain shared employee costs between the segments based on general estimates of the actual time spent by employees related

to each respective segment and other cost sharing metrics In addition management has classified administrative overhead departmental costs such as

accounting information technology and legal as corporate expenses Other costs such as legal fees restructuring expenses sales and marketing and

research and development costs not directly attributed to segments are classified as corporate expenses
Selected financial information for the two

segments follows

October 30 October 31

In thousands 2011 2010

Net reenues

Bingo 24175 30066

VLT 6692 5105

30867 35171

Cost of reenues

Bingo 9844 11825

VLT 5069 4352

14913 16177

Income loss from operations

Bingo 6819 9039

VLT 669 5564

Corporate 10813 13239

4663 9764

Depreciation and amortization

Bingo 3867 5079

VLT 1309 961

Corporate 205 406

5381 6446

October 30 October31

2011 2010

Identifialk assets

Bingo 21684 24387

VLT 4856 7220

Corporate 7393 15153

33933 46760
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17 Suhequent ewut.s

Settlement Agreement On October 2011 the Company entered into Settlement Agreement the Settlement Agreement whereby in exchange

for payment of $500 thousand the Company agreed to resolve discharge and settle all claims that were or could have been brought by the Company

against Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc LBHI Lehman Brothers Inc and certain individuals including those claims asserted in the arbitration

proceeding captioned lameTech International Inc Lehman Brothers Inc et aL Case No 08-03389 pending before the Financial Regulatory

Authority FINRA and the cases commenced in the United States Bankmptcy Court for the Southern District of New York by LBHI and certain of

its subsidiaries under Chapter 11 of Title II ofthe United States Code Case No 08-13555 JMP et seq

The Settlement Agreement provides that payment of the Settlement Amount is subject to the approval of the United States Bankniptcy Court for the

Southern District of New York On November 18 2011 the United States Bankniptcy Court forthe Southern District of New York entered an order in

the above mentioned Chapter 11 cases authorizing relief from the automatic stay to the extent necessary to allow certain insurers to fund the

Settlement Aimunt which occumed on November 232011 Substantially all of the Settlement Amount was used to reduce outstanding debt

License Agreement On October 31 2011 the Company entered into License Agreement with AGS LLC d/b/a American laming Systems AGS
pursuant to which the Company granted AGS the exclusive right to utilue five game titles from the Companys library of poker keno line-up and

blackjack VLT games the VLT lame Titles in connection with video gaming machines sold leased or otherwise placed by AGS in the state of

Illinois The license includes the intellectual property rights associated with each ofthe five individual VLT lame Titles selected by AGS including the

game themes graphical artwork video images audio fuatures math models methodologies and all patents trademarks logos and other intellectual

property associated therewith The Company retains all right title and interest to the VLT lame Titles including the right to sell lease or license such

titles outside Illinois except as expressly granted to AGS under the License Agreement

In consideration for the license AGS agreed to pay the Company non-refundable license fee of $1.0 million which was paid on November 82011 The

License Agreement also includes an option for AGS to license additional games for use in illinois from the Company and right of first refusal and

option to license newly developed games for the Illinois market in exchange for $200000 per game selected This option and right of first refusal will be

available to AGS for period of three years

Sale of Corporate Headquarters On November 22011 the Company entered into Purchase and Sale Agreement and Joint Escrow Instructions the

Sale Agreement to sell certain real property and improvements and certain other assets including approximately 4.9 acres of land an industrial

facility corisisting of approximately 115000 square feet and certain other assets related to the property the Property to Kassbohrer All Terrain

Vehicles Inc the Buyer for $6 125 million

On December 28 2011 the Company and the Buyer closed the sale of the Property As required by our Credit Facility substantially all of the net

proceeds fromthe sale of the Property were used by the Company to reduce the outstanding obligations under its Credit Facility There are no material

relationships between the Buyer and the Company or any of its affiliates directors officers or their associates other than in respect of the

transactions contemplated by the Sale Agreement Pursuant to the terms of the Sale Agreement the Company expects to lease significant portion of

the Property fromthe Buyer fur period of approximately sixteen months from the closing date

Amendments to Bylaws On December 2011 the Board of Directors of the Company unanimously approved an amendment and restatement of the

Companys Bylaws effective November 302011 Article 11 was amended to no longer require that in order to serve as director an individual imist

have the
ability to be present in person at all meetings of the Board of Directors and ii have at least five years of gaming industry experience either

as member of the board of directors or as senior executive officer of company that operates within the gaming industry Article 11 was further

amended to clari1r that consent to any action of the Board of Directors or of any committee thereof taken without meeting may be done by

electronic transmission Certain other immaterial changes were made to confornito the revised nomenclature move provisions within the Bylaws and

to comect typographical enors

On December 222011 the company entered into first amendment to the amended and restated loan agreement See Note
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Item Changes in and Disagreements Mth Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable

item 9A Controls and Procedures

EaIuation ofDisclosure Controls andProcedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e under the Exchange Act that are designed to

ensure that infornntion required to be disclosed in reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is recorded processed summarized and reported

within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms and that such information is accumulated and communicated to management including the

Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures

In connection with the preparation of this Report our nianagement under the supervision and with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and

Chief Financial Officer conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness ofour disclosure controls and procedures as of October 30 2011 Based on that

evaluation our management has concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of that date In making its conclusion

management determined that the material weakness in the Companys disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the Companys thini quarter

had been remediated as of October 30 2011 as result of the Companys reassignment and hiring of personnel improvements in the performance

review and account analyses processes and acceleration of the periodic closing process

Internal Control owr Financial Reporting

Management Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15t under the Exchange Act is
process designed by or under the

supervision of our principal executive and principal financial officers and effected by our board of directors management and other personnel to

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external puiposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over

our financial reporting

We have evaluated with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer the effectiveness of our internal control over

financial reporting as of October 30 2011 This evaluation was peiforined using the Internal Control Integrated Framework developed by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations ofthe Treadway Commission Based on this evaluation our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer

have concluded that our internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15f and 15d-l5f under the Exchange Act was effective as

ofthat date

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in the Companys internal control over financial reporting during the most recently completed fiscal quarter that have

materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect the Companys internal control over financial reporting

Item 9B Other Information

Not applicable
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PART 111

Item 10 Directors and Executie Officers and Corporate Gowrnance

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the definitive pmxy statement to be filed pursuant to Regulation l4A of the

Exchange Act for our 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders

Item 11 Executiw Compensation

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the definitive prexy statement to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A of the

Exchange Act for our 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders

Item 12 Security Onners hip of Certain Beneficial Ovmers and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information required by this item is incorporated by refrence to the definitive pmxy statement to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A of the

Exchange Act for our 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions andDirector Independence

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the definitive proxy statement to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A of the

Fhange Act for our 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders

Item 14 Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the definitive proxy statement to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A of the

Exchange Act for our 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders

PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedules

Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Financial Statements are listed in the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements on page 23 this report

Consolidated Financial Statement Schedules

No financial statement schedules are included because they are not applicable are not required or because required information is

included in the consolidated financial statements or the notes thereto
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Exhibits

Exhilit

Number Description of Exhibit

3.1 Certificate oflncoiporation ofthe Registrant as amended

3.2 Certificate of Designation of Series Junior Participating Preferred Stock ofthe Registrant

3.3 Fourth Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant

4.1 lameTech International Inc Registration Rights Agreement

4.2 Rights Agreement dated as of March 72003 between meTech international Inc and Mellon Investor Services LLC as rights agent

4.3 Amendment No Ito Rights Agreement dated as of July 16 2009 between GtmeTech International Inc and Mellon Investor Services

L.LC as rights agent

4.4 Specimen Common Stock Certificate

10.1 Gamelech International Inc 1997 Incentive Stock Plan

10.2 GameTech International Inc 2001 Restricted Stock Plan

10.3 Amended and Restated 1997 Incentive Stock Plan

10.4 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement

10.5 Form of Stock Option Agreement

10.6 Form of Stock Unit Award Agreement

10.7 GameTech International Inc 2010 Incentive Stock Plan

10.8 Form of Stock Option and Restricted Stock Agreement

10.9 Purchase and Sale Agreement and Joint Escrow Instructions between the Registrant and Kassbrohrer All Tenain Vehicles Inc dated as of

November 2011

10.10 First Amendment to Purchase and Sale Agreement and Joint Escrow Instructions the Registrant and Kassbrohrer All Terrain Vehicles Inc

dated as of December 13 2011

10.11 Amended and Restated Loan Agreement dated June 15 2011 by and among the Registrant and the lenders named herein and U.S Bank

N.A as collateral and administrative agent

10.12 First Amendment to Amended and Restated Loan Agreement and Waiver ofDefaults between the Registrant and the lenders named

herein and U.S Bank N.A as collateral and administrative agent dated as of December 22201110
21 List of Subsidiaries

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Finn

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14a and Rule 15d-14a promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 as amended

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14a and Rule 15d-14a promulgated by the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

as amended

32.1 Certification of ChiefF.xecutive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

of 2002

32.2 Certification of ChiefFinancial Officerpursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002

l01.INS XBRLlnstance

I0l.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema

10l.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation

lOl.DEF XBRLTaxonomy Extension Definition

l0l.LAB XBRLTaxonomy Extension Lobels

101 .PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation

XBRL Information is furnished and not filed ora part of registration statement or prospectus for purposes of sections 11 or 12 of the Securities

Act of 1933 as amended is deemed not filed for purposes of section 18 ofthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended and otherwise

is not subject to liability under these sections
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FXHIBfF INDKX

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 2.1 and 10.1 to the Registrants Registration Statement on FormS-i Registration No 333-34967 as filed

with the Commission on or about September 1997

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Amendment No ito the Registrants Registration Statement on FonnS-l Registration No 333-34967

as filed with the Commission on or about October 17 1997

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Registration Statennt on Fonn S-8 Registration No 333-72886 as filed with the

Commission on or about November 72001

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 72003 as filed with the Commission on or

about March 102003 Commission File No 000-23401

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrants Cument Report on Form 8-K dated July 16 2009 as filed with the Commission on or

about July 202009 Commission File No 000-23401

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 3.3 and 4.4 to the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q for the quarterly period ended January 31

2003 as filed with the Commission on or about March 172003 Commission File No 000-23401

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form i0-Q for the quarterly period ended January 31 2004 as

filed with the Commission on or about March 16 2004 Commission File No 000-23401

Incorporated by reirence to Exhibits 10.34a and to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 28 2006 as filed with

the Commission on or about April 32006

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form I0-Q as filed with the Commission on June 202011

10 Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Cunent Report on Form 8-K dated December 22 2011 as filed with the Commission

on or about December29 2011
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We will provide to any stockholder upon written request copies

of any exhibits listed in our annual report on Form 10-K at the

actual expense we incur in furnishing such exhibits Any such

requests should be directed to our corporate secretary at our

corporate office set forth on the back cover of this annual report



SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d ofthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant has duly caused this report to be

signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authothed

GAMETFCH INTFRNATIONAL INC

Dated Febmaiy 12012 By Is KEVIN PAINTER

Kevin Painter

President and ChiefExecutive Officer

Principal Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of

the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Signature Title Date

IS KEVIN PAiNTER President and Chief Executive Officer February 12012

Kevin Painter Principal Executive Officer

IS ANDREW ROBINSON Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer February 12012

Andrew Robinson Principal Financial Officer and Principal

Accounting Officer

IS RICHARD IRVINE Director February 12012

Richard Irvine

IS SCOTT SHACKELTON Director February 12012

Scott Shackelton

IS DONALD WHTTAKER Director February 12012

Donald Whitaker
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Form 10-K Certifications

copy of the 2011 Annual Report on Form 10-K as filed

with the Securities and Exchange Commissionis available

to stockholders upon written request without charge All

requests should be directed to

GameTech International Inc

Attn Investor Services

8850 Double Diamond Parkway

Reno Nevada 89521

Telephone 775 850-6100

Fax 775 850-6199

Transfer Agent and Registrar

Computershare Shareowner Services LLC

480 Washington Boulevard

Jersey City New Jersey 07310-1900

877 832-7249

Independent Public Accountants

Piercy Bowler Taylor Kern

6100 Elton Avenue

Suite 1000

Las Vegas Nevada 89107

702 384-1120

Our Chief Executive Officer and Interim Chief Financial

Officer have made financial certifications pursuant to

Sections 302 and 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002 as required in filings with the Securities and

Exchange Commission

CommonStock

The Companys common stock is traded on the OTCQB
Marketplace under the symbol GMTC

Annual Meeting

900 a.m on April 25 2012

Corporate Headquarters

8850 Double Diamond Parkway

Reno Nevada 89521

corporate Counsel

Jones Walker Waechter Pointevent Carrere Denegre

LLP

201 St Charles Avenue

New Orleans Louisiana 70170-5100

504 582-8000


